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ABOUT SEM
AR RE

OUR PROFILE

Ready System Engineering Limited (“Ready System (Macau)”) was
founded in 2006. Upon group reorganisation in 2015, Ready System
(Macau) become a wholly owned subsidiary of SEM Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”).

We are a renowned and established electrical and mechanical (‘E&M”)
engineering works contractor in Macau with our focus on providing
electrical-related E&M engineering works.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (“Year 2021” or the
“Year”), the Group has diversified its market risks and uncertainties
by engaging projects with scope of our E&M engineering works in
new Hong Kong segment through its wholly owned subsidiary, SEM
Resources Limited (“SEM Resources”).

The scope of our E&M engineering works mainly consisted of supply,
installation and maintenance of electrical system, for new and existing
buildings in the projects of commercial and residential development,
hotel development, casino development and hotel renovation in
Macau and Hong Kong.

L
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ABOUT SEM

REIY TR
OUR DEVELOPMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT BRERRET

2006 Ready System (Macau) was incorporated in Macau on 15 May 2006. *‘m* "
TETRE RERSK (RPN EERERA+AHTRPIEMALIL =
Ready System (Macau) was awarded its first casino project with a total contract sum of r
approximately MOP22.2 million. ii-l
SERG (RF) BRE—(ERMLIBEE BN HAR22 288 RM T
2007 Ready System (Macau) provided electrical engineering works in a mixed use development
“EZLHF  (hotel and service apartments) project with a total contract sum of approximately MOP118.6
million.
ERG (RP) m—ESREERARNER (BERRBALE) BEREKETIR 85
HWERENA118.6E B BT
Ready System (Macau) was awarded its first residential apartment project with a total contract A
sum of approximately MOP34.8 million. o
PERG (R ERE—EFEASEE  B5NSBNR34.88RRMIT :
2008 The annual revenue of our Group achieved approximately MOP70.0 million.
“EENEFE FEEBRFEWGAORT0.0BE R T
2015 Ready System (Macau) duly registered with The Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau of
£ —H%F Macau as a registered contractor for execution of construction works.
2EZRG (R MRt THERR EAE LA ETRERIRENMAER-
Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to install and supply electrical system in a
residential and commercial development project at Taipa, Macau with the initial contract sum
of approximately MOP138.7 million.
2ERG (R BE—EEB WRMKFNEEREEREREECERERER R4
TEENEENA138.7TEEREMT
2016 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to provide maintenance, supply and installation
ZZ—RHF  of fitting out, electrical, mechanical ventilation and air conditioning and plumbing works in
a hotel renovation project at Avenida da Amizade, Macau with the initial contract sum of l_._ _,_I
approximately MOP120.6 million. R HHFR
DERG (RPY) BER—EEE  HREMKAASE—EOEHHERREEE - BR %
WBRKRERUREEBIENRE HEKZE  TIRENEENR/1206B8 Rt
2017 The annual revenue of our Group first achieved over MOP200.0 million.
“Z2—tF FEEERERFENRZE200.08EHEM T
2019 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system in a hotel
“E—H%F development project at Lago Nam Van, Macau with the initial contract sum of approximately

MOP168.8 million (included provisional sum of approximately MOP13.6 million).
PERG RPN BE—EER #/RMREEH—EESERERREERARNMER
ZHE RS HAEERN2168.8B BRIt (BIEHENESEMN13.6 BEEPIT) °

Annual Report FFE#R &5 2021 5
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ABOUT SEM

RERYRIE

OUR DEVELOPMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT BRETL @)
(Continued)

2020 The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
“ZETFF  Exchange”) on 14 February 2020. |

AABNZZE_Z2FE_B+HBRERHERBABRARE (THAr) Lo I @
2021 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system in a

—ZE”—4 hospital development project at Cotai with the initial contract sum of approximately MOP123.0

million.

RERG (RFY) BR—EEE AR KF—EBRERBEBRHERAMOHERZE

RSN EA 123088 R T

SEM Resources was awarded projects to supply and install electrical system in a data centre
development project at Kwai Chung and in sport park development project at Kai Tak with the
initial contract sums of approximately HK$42.0 million (equivalent to approximately MOP43.4
million) and of approximately HK$358.6 million (equivalent to approximately MOP369.9 million),

respectively.

SEM Resources E#ZERH » AR EE—EHBETOEBRERARNERENEES ARBEIER
REBRAGHHERZE IR ENSEDNE42.0B88 BT TE443.48 82
70) F358.6E B BT (5 49369.98 8 HEFIT) °

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES

Establishing an
E&M maintenance
department

BRIt B R EARFT

KPR EF R

Strengthening
our financial
position to undertake
more sizeable E&M
engineering projects

IBRRAF 1 56 B 5 AR O AR B
RABAENEET
[ERE]=]

Strengthening
our manpower



ABOUT SEM
BRRLIRIE

OUR BUSINESS MODEL EHRER

Receive the invitation to submit quotation/tender from our
customers

Submit quotation/tender, negotiate with our customers on the
prices and terms, interview with customers and/or dealing
with customers’ enquiries

Accept the offer from our customer if a written letter of intent
is issued by our customers or quotation with our customer is
signed

BEERRIRE/RRNEE

RTWE/RR AR R REERFERE
TR BERFEN R HEEEF
&

HEREHEEEDRBAAELEER
B RESEREYN

‘4

Form a project team which normally comprise a project
manager, site supervisor and engineer

Prepare and submit, among others, working drawing and
detailed work programme

Engage imported workers and subcontractor

Procure electrical parts and components and renting
machines and equipment

Satisfy performance bond requirements

I —EEEER —RE—REEK
BT T E R TI2EMAER

AR RIER (AP e TREBMERFA
TF5tEl

ZEBAFIRDEHE
REERT ML BHE K E

B RV IRERIZ R

‘4

Carry out installation and other ancillary works as scheduled
in the detailed work programme

Submit application to our customers for progress payment
and certification monthly

Carry out site acceptance test on the electrical system
installed to ensure conformity to contractual specifications

Negotiate with our customers for re-measurement and
variation orders from the contract

RRFMA I EAINRBERETEZER
Hh#Egh T2

BRAREFRXEENRKRERF
HTRKRNERAMETRZRICAE
LR EGaHRE

MENFEREBANTERERET
BEm

‘4

-  Make good any defects at our own cost within the defect — REBBEEEHANBE&EBEEMIRI

liability period

—  Collect the residue of the retention money and the — RBBRETHERNENRESRBNELN
performance bond upon the end of defect liability period fREK

Annual Report FFE#R &5 2021 7
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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8 SEM Holdings Limited ;8%

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the Year 2021,

The Group has marked a major milestone the year of 2020 with its
listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 14 February
2020 (the “Listing”), undoubtedly providing an effective platform for
the Group’s further development in the market. The additional capital
raised and a broader capital base as a result of the Listing reinforce
our determination to the future growth in the E&M engineering works
in Macau and promote our Group as a well-organised enterprise to
the public.

The Group has recorded a net loss for the Year and a sharp increase
in revenue for the Year 2021. This is mainly due to a combination of
the factors including () increase in revenue as a result of the ease
of quarantine measures for COVID-19 epidemic imposed by the
Macau SAR Government which lead to improvement in construction
progress for certain Group’s on-going projects for the Year 2021; (i)
extra revenue from new projects in new Hong Kong segment as a
result of successful market strategy implemented by management to
diversify the uncertainty and risk imposed by COVID-19 epidemic; (iii)
increased labour costs in Macau market due to limited import labour
quotas in the period of COVID-19 epidemic; and (iv) lower profit
margins of certain awarded projects during the Year 2021 as a result
of higher labour costs and material costs in Hong Kong market and
fierce competition in the construction market.

The COVID-19 outbreak that spread around the world since January
2020 continued to have a materially adverse effect on our operating
results in the Year 2021, though certain results showed improvement
in comparison with the year ended 31 December 2020 (“Year 2020”).

The economy of Macau SAR in terms of gross domestic product
increased in the second and third quarters of 2021, rise by 68.6%
and 32.9%, respectively, period-on-period in real terms, but was still
only 56.8% and 51.3% of the pre-pandemic level of 2019 for the
same period. At the present time, given the evolving conditions of and
in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, including the more recent
appearance of COVID-19 variants, it is not possible to determine
when travel restrictions will be further liberalised or whether they could
be reintroduced if there are adverse developments in the pandemic
situation.

SRR

EANRAREREERES (EF) € (EFE)
ER-T_—FEZFRe

FEER_F_ZFEMBR—EEEZERR
MR- _F B+ A ERLED
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERS

Despite of the unprecedented impact to the global economic market
caused by the COVID-19 pandemics, which created increasing
challenges on business operation of the Group in Macau and Hong
Kong, going forward, we are still optimistic about the prospects
of electrical-related E&M engineering industry. We have developed
our E&M maintenance department to further enlarge the Group's
revenue base and hence achieve its long-term growth in the coming
future after the recovery from the epidemic. We have also actively
sought for opportunities in undertaking additional E&M engineering
services related projects, for example, developing the Hong Kong
E&M engineering services market, which would stabilise the Group’s
revenue base in the period of COVID-19 epidemic and in the long-
run. For our principal market in Macau, we have continued to exercise
our leading knowledge and skills in providing electrical-related
E&M engineering services to our clients. With the advantage of the
perfect-harmony cooperation with our customers, suppliers and
subcontractors, the Group is optimistic about the revenue growth and
prospects of electrical-related E&M engineering industry in the coming
years.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all business partners, professional parties and our
shareholders for their unwavering trust and support to the Group
towards the successful Listing. | also wish to thank the management
team and all fellow staff members for their dedication, professionalism
and contributions. To end off, the Group will remain perseverant
and determined in assuring the long-term development and greater
returns to our shareholders.

Wan Man Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

EECOVID-194% 15 % 2 BKAS 75 1 35 I 4& B Al T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEER w1

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET PROSPECT

Ready System (Macau) was founded in 2006. We are a renowned
and well-established E&M engineering works contractor in Macau
with our focus on providing electrical-related E&M engineering
works. The scope of our E&M engineering works mainly consisted
of supply, installation and maintenance of electrical system, for new
and existing buildings in the projects of commercial and residential
property development, public property development, hotel and casino
development and renovation in Macau. During the Year 2021, the
Group has diversified its market risks and uncertainties by engaging
projects with scope of our E&M engineering works in new Hong Kong
segment through its wholly owned subsidiary, SEM Resources.

During the Year 2021, 15 E&M engineering services projects with an
aggregate contract sum of approximately MOP564.4 million were
awarded. The Group had completed 8 E&M engineering services
projects in the Year 2021. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
backlog included 16 E&M engineering services projects, with an
aggregate outstanding contract sum of approximately MOP441.7
million.

During the Year 2021, the Group recorded total revenue of
approximately MOP182.2 million, which increased by approximately
MOP111.9 million or 159.4% from approximately MOP70.2 million for
the Year 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to (i) the ease of
quarantine measures for COVID-19 epidemic imposed by the Macau
Special Administrative Region (“SAR”) Government which led to
improvement in construction progress for certain Group’s on-going
projects for the Year 2021; and (i) extra revenue from new projects in
new Hong Kong segment as a result of successful market strategy
implemented by management to diversify the uncertainty and risk
imposed by COVID-19 epidemic.

EBEIEKR ISR =

2EZRG CRF) DR ZEERNEMIT - K2R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET PROSPECT
(Continued)

The economy of Macau SAR in terms of gross domestic product
increased in the second and third quarters of 2021, rise by 68.8%
and 32.9%, respectively, period-on-period in real terms, but was still
only 56.8% and 51.3% of the pre-pandemic level of 2019 for the
same period. The economic growth is mainly due to the improvement
in service exports as a result of a rebound in visitor arrivals and
gambling services. Nevertheless, COVID-19 control measures still
affects the economy of Macau SAR.

The Group has been keen to seeking opportunities in undertaking
new projects of E&M engineering services in its principal market in
Macau and expand its scale of operation through its intended effort
in the Hong Kong market from both existing and potential new
customers to diversify the market risks. Benefit from undertaking
project in new market in Hong Kong, the Group generated additional
project revenue of MOP78.3 million in new geographical segment in
Hong Kong in the Year 2021 when compared with the Year 2020.
The Group was therefore able to explore more business opportunities
in face of the economic downturn as a result of COVID-19 epidemic.
Despite we understand that Macau SAR Government has promoted
the construction of Smart City, ranging from hospitality facilities,
transportation management to telecommunications and 5G network.
Considering the latest situation of Macau’s economy from the impact
of COVID-19 epidemic, the Directors believe that the Group has faced
increasing challenges on its Macau business operation since 2021,
however, the Directors also anticipate a better business environment
after the epidemic. The Group has developed its E&M maintenance
department including acquisition of a workshop and certain
equipment in the Year 2021, for which such new development allows
the Group to further enlarge its revenue base and hence achieve its
long-term growth in the future. This is in line with the Group’s future
plan as disclosed in section headed “Future plans” in the prospectus
of the Company dated 31 January 2020 (the “Prospectus”).

Hence, management is cautiously optimistic about the E&M markets
in Macau and Hong Kong after the recovery from the epidemic and
will continue to strive for capturing the new market and new trend of
rising needs for E&M engineering services.

EBEOERTSZIIR @
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 159.4% from approximately
MOP70.2 million for the Year 2020 to approximately MOP182.2
million for the Year 2021. Such increase was mainly due to a
combination of factors as disclosed in section headed “BUSINESS
REVIEW AND MARKET PROSPECT”.

B4 % [cl g8

g
AEEMNKEHR _ZE _SFEMNL70.28 & B
TTENM159.4%E _ B - —FEMHN182.2H B R
Fice BRAE ML EERN EHKLBERTHA
SI—HREESERERZGHEEFRR-

2021 2020
—E-—# —Eof

MOP million % MOP million %

BERMT BEEMT
Hotels and Casinos T IE R iR 435 29.6 16.2% 65.6 93.4%
Residential properties EEYE 10.5 5.8% 1.0 1.4%
Commercial properties BEYE 66.3 36.4% 1.4 2.0%
Public properties N E 74.9 41.1% = -
Others Hth 0.9 0.5% 2.2 3.2%

182.2 70.2

Cost of sales SHE RS

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately MOP160.7
million for the Year 2021, representing an increase of 169.2% from
approximately MOP59.7 million for the Year 2020. Cost of sales
mainly comprised of costs of materials and subcontracting costs,
which accounted for approximately 36.5% and 49.8% respectively of
the Group’s total cost of sales for the Year 2021 (2020: 33.3% and
42% respectively). The increase in cost of sales for the Year 2021
mainly due to increase in revenue for the Year 2021.

TR FE - AEENHEERSAN160.7E
BREMT BR_E_SEEMNLS.7EE Rt
HIN169.2% c tHE M A F B OIEM MK A K5
BT DAIMEEER B2 —FEAHERLT
B94936.5%5249.8% (ZE T F : 9 73]%33.3%
Fed2%) o _E - —FEZHERKEMNNDEE
BN S - —FE W



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW continued)
Gross Profit/Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s overall gross profit for the provision of E&M engineering
works increased to approximately MOP21.5 million for the Year
2021 from approximately MOP10.6 million for the Year 2020. The
gross profit margin decreased from 15.1% for the Year 2020 to
approximately 11.8% for the Year 2021.

The increase in gross profit was mainly due to improvement on
the Group’s overall project performance in the Year 2021. This
contributed to significant reduction of net loss of the Group in the Year
2021 and enhancement of the Group’s cashflows.

The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to (i)
generally lower profit margins of certain awarded projects during
the Year 2021 as a result of higher labour costs and material costs
in Hong Kong market and fierce competition in the construction
market; (i) increased labour costs in Macau market due to limited
import labour quotas in the period of COVID-19 epidemic; and
(i) the projects for the Year 2020 with relatively higher gross profit
margin due to the variation works as a result of the alteration of the
construction plan and our successful negotiation with our customers
for a relatively higher profit margin in view of the short completion time
required. Those projects were at their latter stage and approaching
practical completion, of which the gross profit contribution is relatively
larger for the Year 2020.

Despite the decrease in gross profit margin of the Group in the Year
2021, the Directors consider that the gross profit margin has been
maintained at a healthy position as such gross profit margin in the
Year 2021 is in the lower end project margins in historical records
and also given the economic downturn due to COVID-19 epidemic.
The Group is striving for bidding potential projects with higher gross
profit margin and costs saving to maintain higher gross margin of the
Group.

Other income

Other income mainly included interest income from banks,
government grants, disposal of scrap materials and sundry
income. For the Year 2021, the Group’s other income amounted to
approximately MOPO0.8 million (Year 2020: approximately MOP1.3
million). Such decrease was mainly attributable to the absence of
one-off government grant for securing the employments of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continueq)
Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal

The prolonged COVID-19 epidemic adversely affected business
operations of a group of project employer (the “Project Employer
Group”) of the Group’s sizable E&M engineering project of a hotel
development (the “Project”) in 2020, of which the outstanding
contract assets and trade receivables with gross balances amounted
to MOP30,637,000 and MOP11,335,000, respectively were
outstanding as at 31 December 2021. The Project Employer Group
suspended the development of the Project since the third quarter of
2020. The ultimate holding company of the Project Employer Group
is a listed company in the Stock Exchange, who announced the
disposal of interest in the Project Employer Group to a third party (the
“Purchaser”) for generating more cash to finance its operation under
the COVID-19 pandemic environment.

Despite the Group’s direct customers of the Project (the “Direct
Customers”) are not the Project Employer Group itself as mentioned
above, this increases the credit risks of the trade receivables and
contract assets of the Project. At 31 December 2021, the Group
has recognised cumulative credit loss allowance on contract assets
and trade receivables of approximately MOP9.8 million and MOP3.0
million (31 December 2020: approximately MOP3.8 million and
MOP1.3 million), respectively, of which credit loss allowance of
approximately MOP5.5 million and MOP2.0 million (31 December
2020: approximately MOP2.8 million and MOP1.0 million) are related
to contract assets and trade receivables of the Project, respectively.

Management of the Group has actively communicated with the
Direct Customers and understand that the Direct Customers have
commenced legal actions via arbitration against the main-contractor
of the Project. During the Year 2021, one of the Direct Customers
was invited to participate a hearing section of arbitration related
to the Project, who was awarded in favour in such arbitration. It is
expected the whole arbitration process will finish by the end of 2022.
In addition, we believe that we can recover the amount due from the
Direct Customers because () no matter what happens, our rights
to demand outstanding payments from the Direct Customers are
not affected by any other arrangements of other parties involved in
the Project; (i) good and long-term on-going business relationships
between the Group and the Direct Customers for more than ten
years with no default in history. Furthermore, there were continuing
settlements and certification of completed works for billing after the
suspension of the Project during the Year 2021; and (i) the Group
obtained a repayment commitment from the Direct Customer to fully
repay the outstanding contract assets and trade receivables by the
completion of arbitration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continueq)

Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal
(Continued)

Impairment losses under ECL model derived from trade receivables
and contract assets of the Group. The change in impairment loss
under ECL model from impairment loss of MOP4.4 million in the Year
2020 to impairment loss of approximately MOP7.7 million in the Year
2021 was mainly due to overall increase in credit risks on certain
project customers and taken into accounts for the following factors
including (i) continuing settlements of completed works for billing to
the Project in the Year 2021; (i) increase credit risks as a result of
economic recession of casino market in Macau; and (jii) increase in
gross balances of the Group’s contract assets and trade receivables
of other projects at 31 December 2021. Furthermore, there were
continuing settlements and certification of completed works for billing
after the suspension during the Year 2021.

Management of the Group have taken actions to recover the
outstanding balances of the Project and consider that those balances
will be recovered eventually. ECL has been provided on these
balances in accordance with the requirements set out in Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard (‘HKFRS”) 9.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased from approximately
MOP18.2 million for the Year 2020 to approximately MOP19.3 million
for the Year 2021. Such increase was mainly due to (i) increase in
our total staff costs as a result of increase in average headcount for
the Group’s business development; and (i) increase in depreciation
charges as a result of acquisition of a workshop as disclosed in
the section headed “Significant Investments, Material Acquisition or
Disposals”.

Taxation

The change in the Group’s income tax expense from tax expense of
approximately MOPO0.8 million for the Year 2020 to tax expenses of
MOP14,000 for the Year 2021, which was mainly due to recognition
of deferred tax assets for tax loss and overprovision of tax provision in
prior years.

A F O EE @

FEHREEEEENIE T ZREEE 0k
1 M€=

EHREEEEEAE T2 REFEREAER
ZREWEZERIRENEE BREEBEER
BEBRZREGENSESESEH T _SFENREE
BEE4AEBERMPTEA S —FENRER
BOBN7T7TEERMTHETERANETEER
PZEERBERIEMI TR TFIRE > &)
TR FEZEHERR I ERABRNE
BEE ()VEMEETEECERRSIEEERE
B KW 2 —F+_A=+—HAXEH
HMBEENENEEKREWESRANEERE
Frigmmettsh R - —FEEREFEBEE
EERBSEE T TREBEBHAERBWE-

FEBREEREEHBITEWEIERREERER
BRI MBI ED A R SRR AR R R D - AL E
EREEBMBREED (EBMBREER)
FOMFMBMIREN AL FEFTIRBMEERR
e

THR%

AEENTERAXHE _Z_TFENN182EE
RPI T E T —FEAN19.38 B Rt
BRAEMDETEZARNIEREREBE RN T
BT ABIEMERAEE TAAIEN; K)HTE
ARBE -EANBALESR —HRES
WEE—RTRMERINE LB MMAFIE M-

578

AEBEFMERASTH_S_SFENRIBAX
HOSEBRMATEAZS - —FENRIERSE
14,0008 P70 > T EZ AR NI IR B AV IEIE
MBEERMUTEENRBR BT ITBEE
o

Annual Report FFE#R &5 2021 15



16 SEM Holdings Limited B3ZZIEERA T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW continueq)
Net Loss and Adjusted Net Loss

The Group reported net loss for the Year 2021 of approximately
MOP5.0 million, as compared with net loss of approximately
MOP20.2 million suffered for the Year 2020. If the non-recurring
listing expenses were excluded, the Group’s adjusted net loss for the
Year 2020 (non-HKFRS measure) would be approximately MOP11.7
million.

Final Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year 2021 (Year 2020: nil).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group has financed its operations primarily through cash inflows
from operating activities, as well as proceeds received from the
Listing. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately MOP40.3 million (31 December 2020:
approximately MOP105.4 million) and remains solid in its financial
position in meeting its future financial obligations.

As at 31 December 2021, the working capital (current assets less
current liabilities) and total equity attributable to owners of the
Group were approximately MOP198.5 million (31 December 2020:
approximately MOP220.1 million) and approximately MOP230.9
million (31 December 2020: approximately MOP235.9 million),
respectively.

Gearing ratio (total debt including amounts due to Directors/total
equity) as at 31 December 2021 was approximately 18.4% (31
December 2020: approximately 15.4%). Such increase was mainly
due to the increase in the bank borrowing to finance the acquisition of
a property used as a workshop during the Year 2021, as discussed
in “Significant Investments, Material Acquisition or Disposals” in this
report.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities, and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements all the time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

CURRENCY RISK

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions and assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the relevant group entities.
As such, the Group currently does not have any foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions and assets
and liabilities as the Group’s risk in foreign exchange is insignificant.
However, the Group will continue to monitor closely its exposure to
currency movement and take proactive measures.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of
rate changes on interest bearing financial assets, mainly interest-
bearing bank balances. The interest rates of these bank deposits are
determined by reference to the respective bank offer rate. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTY

The Group’s business operations are conducted in Macau and Hong
Kong providing the electrical-related E&M engineering works and
our engagements with customers were on a project basis and non-
recurring in nature that we did not enter into any long-term agreement
or master service agreement with them. We have to undergo the
competitive bidding process for every new project. In the event that
we are unable to attract new customers or secure new projects
from our existing customers, there may be a significant decrease in
our revenue. Our operations and financial results would hence be
adversely affected.

The Group’s liquidity position may be adversely affected if the
progress payment or the retention money is not paid or released to
the Group on time or in full or the construction project cash flows are
fluctuated. To monitor the pressure of financial liquidity, the Group
produces aging analysis on regular basis and contracts management
level of the customers so as to get a better understanding of their
solvency status.

Other principal risks include fluctuations in estimated project
costs versus the actual project cost incurred due to unexpected
circumstances and imported labour quota allocated to our projects,
both of which would adversely affect the Group’s operations and
financial performance.

The Group is also exposed to certain market risks such as currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, etc..

The Group believes that risk management is the responsibility of
everyone within the Group and has implemented a risk management
system to mitigate the risks in daily operations. Risk management
is led by the Directors at the top, who take both macro and micro
economic conditions into account before making business decisions,
and also aims to develop risk awareness and control responsibility
as the Group’s culture and the foundation of the Group’s internal

controls system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERER R R

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the Year 2021, the Group entered into a Pre-Sale Agreement
with Mr. Un lok Weng and Ms. Lei Sio Hong, as the sellers and
independent third parties, to acquire the property “EM MACAU,
AVENIDA DO ALMIRANTE MAGALHAES CORREIA N°S 11-91,
RUA CINCO BAIRRO DA AREIA PRETA N°S 13-21, AVENIDA DE
VENCESLAU DE MORAIS N°S 143-173, IND. KEK SENG S12” in
Macau, for consideration of approximately HK$16.4 million and such
transaction was complete and fully settled on 16 April 2021. For
further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 22 January 2021 and 16 April 2021.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held, nor any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associated companies for the Year 2021.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The newly acquired property as mentioned in “Significant
Investments, Material Acquisitions or Disposals” was pledged to a
bank located in Macau for obtaining a mortgage loan of HK$8.0
million to finance the relevant acquisition.

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021 are pledged to secure the performance bonds granted to the
Group. The Group had no other material pledge of assets as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2021.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above and in the Prospectus, the Group does not
have other plans for material investments and capital assets as at 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no material capital commitments as at 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

The Group’s principal business objective is to further strengthen its
position as an integrated construction contractor.

Despite it is expected the Group will encounter increasing challenges
in Macau operation, the Group is keen to seeking opportunities in
undertaking new projects of E&M engineering services in its principal
market in Macau.

For development of E&M engineering services, the Group continues
to achieve its business objective by expanding its scale of operation
through its intended effort in actively seeking opportunities in
undertaking additional E&M engineering services related projects in
Macau and Hong Kong markets, from both existing and potential new
customers, on top of its present scale of operation and its current
projects on hand.

For development of E&M maintenance department, the Group has
acquired a property in Macau on 22 January 2021 for the intended
use of workshop, as discussed in section headed “Significant
investments, Material Acquisitions or Disposals”. As disclosed in the
Prospectus of the Company, the workshop has been used for the
parking and regular maintenance of our machines and vehicles after
acquisition in the Year 2021. Such workshop will be also designated
to (i) serve as an emergency centre for our staff and technicians 24-
hour standby to handle the orders for emergency E&M maintenance
services and for staff facilities; (i) carry out testing, inspection and
storage of the electrical parts and components for E&M maintenance
services; (i) be used for storage of the electrical equipment; and
(iv) serve as an operating theatre to repair the malfunctioning
components retrieved from our clients’ malfunctioning E&M systems.

Regarding the control strategies to amid the COVID-19, the Group
has centralised the project teams to stay either in Macau or Hong
Kong for avoiding unnecessary time spent on the COVID-19 testing
and cross border quarantine measures. Besides, the Group has
also implemented various safety measures to reduce the risk of
widespread of COVID-19 virus including staff training and distributing
hygienic tool kits, face masks and encouraging vaccination, etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERER R R

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in elsewhere of this report, there have been no
other material events occurring after the Year 2021 and up to the date
of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the Year 2021, as far as the Board and management are
aware there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has material impact
on the business and operation of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had 63 full-time employees including non-executive
directors and executive directors as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: 39), among which 29 and 34 (31 December 2020:
23 and 16) were stationed in Macau and Hong Kong, respectively.
The total staff costs (including fees, salaries and other allowance,
and retirement benefit scheme contributions) for the Year 2021
were approximately MOP17.6 million (Year 2020: approximately
MOP11.7 million). The remuneration policy and package of the
Group’s employees were periodically reviewed by management of
the Company. Apart from retirement benefit scheme contributions,
salaries increment and discretionary bonuses may be awarded
to employees according to the assessment of individual and the
Group’s performance. The remuneration policy in place as at 31
December 2021 was in line with the current legislation in the relevant
jurisdictions, market conditions and performance of the staff and the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENmRA

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) have been listed on
the Stock Exchange on 14 February 2020 (the “Listing Date”). Net
proceeds from the Listing were approximately MOP73.2 million (after
deducting the underwriting commission and other listing expenses
in connection to the Listing). As at 31 December 2021, the net
proceeds had been utilised as follows:

LHFRERIERZR

xpERHG (TRHM) R_E_FF_F+WMH
(TETREA)) R LT o LTS RIE
FBER/NTICHEERM T (BNGREHEAE R
HEMARNEM EHRAXRE) - KITZ—F
+TZR=+—H FEMEFEZFAB R
T

Actual usage Unutilised

Net up to amounts as at
proceeds from 31 December 31 December
the Listing 2021 2021
BEE ®
—E-F &
t@FRE +ZA=+—H +ZHA=+—H
MIEFEE ZERHRE ZREBHAEE
MOP million MOP million MOP million
BEE®MT BEREMT BEEMT
Payment of the upfront cost for o SIS RN I N
our future projects 22.9 (22.9) -
Payment of the performance bonds for RIRIEE BARROMR
our future projects 22.9 (18.4) 4.5
Establishing E&M Maintenance BRI B REIDFY
Department 1513 (14.1) 1.2
Strengthening manpower I AF 7.2 4.1) 3.1
Strengthening manpower for IR EREBPINAF
(E&M Maintenance Department) 44 4.2) 0.2
General working capital —REEES 0.5 (0.5) =
73.2 64.2) 9.0

The unutilised proceeds of approximately MOP9.0 million were placed
with a licensed bank in Hong Kong.

As affected by COVID-19 epidemic, the Group targets to complete
the implementation of the future plan and the unutilised net proceeds
are expected to be fully utilised within one year after the Year 2021.
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EFhEREEEBREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board consists of eight Directors, including three executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The biographies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set forth below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Woo Chu Fai (8811 #8) , aged 51, is our executive Director, chief
executive officer and senior project manager. He was appointed as
our executive Director on 29 March 2016 and our chief executive
officer on 1 August 2018. He is a director of SEM Resources Limited.
He is currently responsible for overseeing our projects management,
execution of daily management and operation, and regulatory
compliance.

Mr. Woo has more than 25 years of experience in the E&M
engineering industry. He joined Ready System (Macau) on
22 February 1995 as an engineer. Mr. Woo started to work for our
Group in around April 2007 and has served as our senior project
manager since 1 March 2016. He was awarded higher diploma in
management of building services engineering from Vocational Training
Council in Hong Kong in July 2003. He obtained a bachelor degree
of engineering in building services engineering from the University of
Central Lancashire, through distance learning, in December 2007. He
currently holds the certificate of registration of electrical worker issued
by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department in Hong Kong
and is a Grade C electrical worker.

For Mr. Woo’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ Report” in this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wun Chi Wai (FE®&) (‘Mr. CW Wun”), aged 52, joined Ready
System (Macau) as a contracts manager on 1 May 1993. Mr. CW
Wun joined our Group as a shareholder of Ready Engineering Limited
(“Ready Engineering”) upon the incorporation of Ready System
(Macau), a company incorporated in Macau, on 15 May 2006. He is
one of our controlling Shareholders and our executive Director. He is
also a director of each of the members of our Group except for Ready
System (Macau). He was appointed as our Director on 6 November
2015 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on
29 March 2016. On 1 August 2018, he was re-designated as our
executive Director. He is currently responsible for providing strategic
advice to our Group’s business development.

Mr. CW Wun was awarded the higher certificate in building studies
by Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1991. He obtained a master
degree of business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (currently known as City University of Macau) in
January 1999. He is the younger brother of Mr. Wan Man Keung and
the cousin of Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis. He has more than 25
years of experience in the E&M engineering industry.

For Mr. CW Wun’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report”
in this annual report.

Mr. Yu Chi Kwan (§iE E) (‘Mr. Yu"), aged 52, joined Ready System
(Macau) on 1 April 1994 as an engineer. Mr. Yu joined our Group as a
shareholder of Ready Engineering on 28 December 2010 and started
to work for our Group in around April 2013. He was appointed as our
senior project manager on 16 April 2016 and our executive Director
on 1 August 2018 and is one of our controlling Shareholders. Mr. Yu
is currently responsible for overseeing our projects management,
execution of daily management and operation.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yu completed a three-year part-time evening technician
programme at Morrison Hill Technical Institute (currently known as
the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in
Hong Kong and was awarded a certificate in electrical engineering
in September 1992. Mr. Yu has more than 25 years of experience
in the E&M engineering industry. He currently holds the certificate
of registration of electrical worker issued by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department in Hong Kong and is a Grade B
electrical worker.

For Mr. YU's interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in this
annual report.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wan Man Keung (FE3%) (‘Mr. MK Wan”), aged 60, founded
our Group (through Ready Engineering) on 15 May 2006. He
is one of our controlling shareholders, our chairman and non-
executive Director, and member of our nomination committee. He
was appointed as our Director on 6 November 2015 and was re-
designated as our executive Director on 29 March 2016. On 1 August
2018, he was re-designated as non-executive Director. He is also
a director/administrator of each of the members of our Group.
He is currently responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group’s business development.

Mr. MK Wan currently holds the certificate of registration of electrical
worker issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
in Hong Kong and is a Grade B electrical worker. He has more
than 28 years of experience in the E&M engineering industry. Prior
to founding our Group, Mr. MK Wan, together with other business
partners, through Ready Engineering, established, among others,
Ready System (Macau) providing various E&M engineering services
in Hong Kong and the PRC. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus. Mr. MK Wan is currently an executive director of REM
Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 1750), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)
Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. MK Wan completed form three education in 1978. He was
awarded a craft certificate in electrical fittings and installations by
the Morrison Hill Technical Institute (currently known as the Hong
Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in Hong Kong
in July 1981. He is the elder brother of Mr. CW Wun and a cousin of
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis.

Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis (B§FE5), aged 65, is our
non-executive Director and member of our audit committee and
remuneration committee. She was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 29 March 2016. She is currently responsible for providing
strategic advice to our Group’s internal control and corporate
governance. Mrs. Kan is currently a certified public accountant
(practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a chartered tax adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Between June 1977 and December 1980, Mrs. Kan worked for The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation (currently known as
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited). She was
employed by John B.P. Byrne & Co. between December 1980 and
April 1985 with her last position as tax senior. She was a founding
partner of a local firm of certified public accountants from April 1997
to October 2010. She later founded KAN-WAN Certified Tax Advisors,
a tax consultancy firm, in December 2010 and BOYA CPA & Co., a
certified public accountant (practising) firm, in October 2012.

Mrs. Kan is currently a non-executive director of REM Group
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 1750), the issued shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. She completed the programme of
diploma in management studies organised jointly by the Hong Kong
Management Association and Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in June 1988.
Mrs. Kan is a cousin of Mr. MK Wan and Mr. CW Wun.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer (Z|}FZE), aged 70, is our
independent non-executive Director and chairman of our nomination
committee and member of our remuneration committee. He was
appointed as the independent non-executive Director on 22 January
2020. He is currently responsible for providing independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources and standard of conduct. He is also a fellow
of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and was the president from
1996 to 1997.

Mr. Lau has substantial experience and involvements in construction,
real estate and infrastructure projects. Mr. Lau was a member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 2000 to 2004. He was
a former chairman of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(HK Branch). He was a non-executive director of the Urban Renewal
Authority, a member of the council of the City University of Hong
Kong and a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Shanghai. Mr. Lau is currently the
managing director of Biel Asset Management Company Limited.
Mr. Lau was also an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (stock code: 1888) from August 2015
to January 2022 and was an independent non-executive director
of MTR Corporation Limited (stock code: 66) from August 2015 to
May 2019, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Also,
since November 2020, Mr. Lau has worked for China Resources
Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1209), as an independent non-
executive director.

Mr. Lau was awarded a higher diploma in quantity surveying from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in 1974 and a master degree in construction
project management from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lau is one of the founders and currently the chairman of Hong
Kong Coalition of Professional Services. Mr. Lau is also a member of
the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, the Basic Law Promotion Steering Committee, and the
council of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS GE{#F), aged 67, is
our independent non-executive Director and chairman of our
remuneration committee and member of our audit committee. He was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 22 January
2020. He is currently responsible for providing independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources and standard of conduct. Dr. Sham is
currently a practicing barrister in Hong Kong. He has been admitted
as a barrister of High Court of Hong Kong in 1986, a barrister of
High Court of Australia in 1991, and a barrister and solicitor of the
Supreme Court of the Australian Capital Territory (ACT) in 1991.
He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the government of
Hong Kong in 2016. He has been elected as a fellow of Society for
Advanced Legal Studies (SALS), England in October 2002.

Between May 1978 and March 2016, Dr. Sham worked for the
government of Hong Kong, including the Department of Justice, with
his last position as deputy director of public prosecutions. He has
been an honorary advisor of the Staff Training Institute of Correctional
Services Department since 2018.

Dr. Sham was awarded a bachelor degree of social science from The
Hong Kong University in November 1978, a bachelor degree of laws
from The University of Buckingham in February 1984, a postgraduate
diploma in law and practice from The City University London in
October 1985, a master degree of laws in Chinese law from The
University of Hong Kong in December 2004 and a doctorate degree
of laws* (£Z18 =) from China University of Political Science and Law
in June 2005.
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Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas (1#§X5&), aged 60, is our independent
non-executive Director and chairman of our audit committee and
member of our nomination committee. He was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 22 January 2020. He is
currently responsible for providing independent judgement to bear on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources and
standard of conduct.

Mr. May has gained experience of accounting, finance and general
management since 1987. From September 1987 to October 1990,
he worked with Deloitte Ross Tohmatsu (currently known as Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu), with his last position held as senior accountant
in the audit department. From October 2002 to October 2003,
he worked for Kinetana International Biotech Pharma Limited, a
company previously listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(former stock code: 8031) and delisted from the Stock Exchange in
September 2006, as the financial controller and company secretary.
From March 2004 to July 2005, he worked for Zhongda International
Holdings Limited, a company previously listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (former stock code: 909) and delisted from
the Stock Exchange in March 2019, as the group financial controller
and company secretary. From August 2005 to October 2006, he
worked for Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited (later known
as Goldin Properties Holdings Limited), a company previously listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (former stock code:
283) and delisted from the Stock Exchange in August 2017, as the
chief financial officer and company secretary and his last position
as deputy general manager. From April 2007 to October 2009, he
worked for Hopewell Holdings Limited, a company previously listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (former stock code: 54)
and delisted from the Stock Exchange in May 2019, as the group
financial controller. From May 2008 to October 2009, he also worked
for Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited (currently known as
Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company
Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 737), as an alternate director. From March 2010 to
March 2013, he worked for China Resources Property Limited as
the chief financial officer and internal audit director. Since July 2013,
he has been appointed as the director of Nichova Consultants
Limited. From April 2015 to January 2018, Mr. May worked for
China Information Technology Development Limited, a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8178), as an
independent non-executive director. In addition, Mr. May worked for
S&T Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 3928) from August 2019 to January
2021, as an independent non-executive director.
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Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. May obtained a degree of bachelor of economics from Macquarie
University in Australia in April 1986 and a degree of master of
commerce in finance from the University of New South Wales in
Australia in June 1995. He has been an associate of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants (currently known as The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants) since June 1990.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Man Wai Thomas (E2X{&), aged 54, is our assistant
project manager. He was employed by China Head Development
Limited from January 1997 to November 2000 with his last position
as a supervisor. He joined Ready System (Macau) on 1 December
2000 as an engineer. Mr. Wong started to work for our Group in
around April 2008 and has served as our assistant project manager
since 1 March 2016. He has more than 21 years of experience in
the E&M engineering industry. He was appointed as our executive
Director on 29 March 2016 and resigned as our executive Director
on 1 August 2018. He was also appointed as an administrator
of Ready System (Macau) on 20 June 2011 and resigned as our
project manager on 31 January 2022. Mr. Wong completed form
five education in June 1984 in Hong Kong. He was responsible for
assisting our senior project manager in our projects management and
execution of daily management and operation.

Mr. Yip Chi Fai (EE#8), aged 41, was our financial controller and
company secretary. He joined Ready System (Macau) on 2 May 2008
as an accountant and started to work for our Group on 1 January
2014. He was appointed as our financial controller and company
secretary on 15 March 2016 and 29 March 2016, respectively and
he resigned as our financial controller and company secretary on 18
December 2017. He was appointed as our financial controller and
company secretary on 30 November 2020 and he resigned as our
financial controller on 6 July 2021.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continueq)

Mr. Yip was awarded one-year advanced certificate in accountancy
by Hong Kong Christian Service Kwun Tong Vocational Training
Centre in July 2000 and has become a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2013. He has more than 18 years of experience in accounting. He
worked for Lixin C.PA. Limited between August 2000 and March
2004 as audit assistant, and Info Smart International Enterprises
Limited between March 2004 and March 2006 as assistant
accountant. Before joining Ready System (Macau), he served
Qualiman Industrial Co. Limited as assistant accounting manager
between April 2006 and March 2008.

Mr. Lo Kwun Kit (BB {#), aged 33, is our financial controller and
company secretary. He joined SEM Resources on 7 July 2021 and
started to work for our Group on the same date in replacement of
Mr. Yip Chi Fai as financial controller and company secretary. He
is currently responsible for managing and overseeing the financial
operation, corporate governance and company secretarial matters of
our Group.

Mr. Lo obtained the degree of bachelor of business administration
with a major in accounting and a minor in finance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2013. Mr. Lo has
approximately 8 years of working experiences in accounting, financial
management and auditing. From 2013 to 2021, Mr. Lo served as
an auditor in several professional firms including two of the big four
international accounting firms in Hong Kong. From February 2021
to July 2021, he was a financial controller of a main board listed
company in Hong Kong. Mr. Lo has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since October 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERERS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of corporate
governance standard. The Board believes that good corporate
governance standards are essential in providing a framework for
the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”), enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and all relevant code
provisions as set out under the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
code”) contained in Appendix 14 to Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). To the best of
the knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied with the CG
code during the Year 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.
The Directors will periodically review on the Company’s corporate
governance policies and will propose any amendment, if necessary, to
ensure compliance with the code provisions from time to time.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the requirements of the Model Code
throughout the Year 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of eight
Directors including Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Chief executive officer), Mr. Wun
Chi Wai and Mr. Yu Chi Kwan as the executive Directors, and Mr. Wan
Man Keung (Chairman) and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the
non-executive Directors, and Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer, Dr. Sham
Chung Ping Alain, BBS, and Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas as the
independent non-executive Directors.

There is a balance of skills and experience for the Board, which is
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Biographical details are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 30 of this annual
report.

Save that Mr. CW Wan is the younger brother of Mr. MK Wan, and
two of them are cousin of Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis, there are
no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as operation and financial performance of the Group.
The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the chairman in drawing the agenda of each meeting and
each Director may request inclusion of matters in the agenda. Al
Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible
for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG code, the Board should
meet regularly and regular board meetings should be held at least
four times per year. Additional meetings would be arranged if and
when required. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The attendance record of each Director at the Board committee
meetings held during the Year 2021 is set out in the table below:

EETw

EETEN =
EEEREN S EEETNEEEEY
BHERSHIINT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

FRHEER R

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Name of Director Board AGM Committee Committee Committee
EXi4 55T RKREBFAET BiEET R4%ZBT  HiZeg
Mr. Woo Chu Fai AEERE 4/4 11 N/A RE N/A R EH N/A FEH
Mr. Wun Chi Wai FERLE 4/4 11 N/A REH N/A R EH N/A R EH
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan ASELE 4/4 11 N/A FEH N/A FEH N/A R EH
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRALE 4/4 11 N/ATEH 11 N/A R EH
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis BREREA 4/4 11 3/3 N/A TEH 1/1
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer BRELE 4/4 11 N/A RBH 11 11
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, B8S L ¥+ BBS 4/4 11 3/3 N/A RNEH 11
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas BRRAE 4/4 11 3/3 11 N/A R B

During the Year 2021, the Board has at all times met the
requirements of rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has three
independent non-executive Directors and all of the three independent
non-executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The three independent non-executive Directors represent more than
one-third of the Board, the proportion of which can satisfy what is
required by rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-
executive directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one third
of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient independence
element in the Board to safeguard the interest of Shareholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

Each of the executive and non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment contract with the Company for a period of three years
from the Listing Date and is subject to termination provisions therein
and provisions on retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors
as set out in the amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company (the “Restated Articles”).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a period of three years from
the Listing Date and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors as set
out in the Restated Articles.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board takes the responsibility collectively to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitor the performance of the senior
executives. The Directors have to make decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company. To oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) (together,
the “Board Committees”).

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities of the Directors (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations, and are invited to serve on the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

The Board has delegated to the management, consisting of executive
Directors along with other senior executives, with the responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction adopted by the Board
from time to time and conducting the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group.

The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of references. Further details
of the Board Committees are set out in the sections headed
“Audit Committee”, “Nomination Committee” and “Remuneration
Committee” below.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 22 January 2020 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board
composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the
appointment of new Directors, taking into account a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry and regional experience, and length of service.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continueq)

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
annually to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Company’s diversity philosophy including the gender diversity
was generally followed in the workforce throughout the Group for
the Year 2021. As of the date of this report, 12.5% of Directors and
22.8% of total workforce were female. The Company will continue to
promote diversity, including gender diversity, at workforce levels.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 22 January 2020 which sets out the criteria and process in the
nomination and appointment of Directors, aims to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and to ensure the Board’s continuity
and appropriate leadership. The Nomination Committee shall
identify candidates who are qualified/suitable to become a member
of the Board and to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of candidates nominated for directorships. The selection of
candidates will be based on a range of selection criteria as set out
in the Nomination Policy, including but not limited to, character and
integrity, qualification, potential contributions the candidate can bring
to the Board in terms of qualifications, skill, experience, independence
and gender diversity, the candidate’s willingness and ability to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board.
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NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

For the appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee will first
identify individual(s) suitably qualified to become Board members
and assesses the independence of the proposed independent non-
executive Director(s). Then, the Nomination Committee will make
recommendation to the Board for consideration, having regard to
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy. The Board will
confirm the appointment of the suitable candidate or recommend the
candidate to stand for election at a general meeting of the Company.
The candidate(s) who is/are appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board will be subject to re-election
by Shareholders at the next annual general meeting after initial
appointment in accordance with the Restated Articles.

For the re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee will
also consider the retiring Directors based on the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy, and assess their independence
before the Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the
Board to consider. After the Board considers each retiring Directors,
the Board will recommend the suitable retiring Directors(s) to stand
for re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Restated Articles. The Shareholders will approve the re-election of
Directors at the annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size,
composition (including skills, knowledge, experience and length
of service) of the Board on a regular basis at least annually and
diversity of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has set up a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
22 January 2020 with an aim to strike a balance between maintaining
sufficient capital to develop and operate the business of the Group
and rewarding the Shareholders. According to the Dividend Policy,
in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board shall take into account the following
factors:

(@) the Company’s operating results, actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(c) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

()  the Group’s liquidity position;

(@ general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal and external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Company; and

(h) any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate and
relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Laws of the
Cayman Islands, any applicable laws, rules and regulations and the
Restated Articles. The declaration and payment of future dividend
under the Dividend Policy are subject to the Board’s determination
that the same would be in the best interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole. The Board will review the Dividend Policy
from time to time and may exercise at its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it
deems fit and necessary.
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EXEERRS

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors have participated in the following trainings during the Year
2021:
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ATEC—EE EFESRNTREI:

Type of Training’°®

Name of Directors EEN4A 1A EE R
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Woo Chu Fai LELEd b A
Mr. Wun Chi Wai FEREE A
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan ASELE A
Non-executive Directors FFHITESE

Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis BFREFE LA A&B
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRALE A&B
Independent Non-executive Directors BLIEHITEE

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer FIRE LA A&B
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS B FEE L BBS ASB
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas PN e AB
Note: Wiat

Types of Training: b= (=11

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, expert briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant newspaper, journals, magazines and relevant
publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 January
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules and the CG code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to, among other things, (i) maintain relationship with
the Company’s external auditor by including but not limited to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors, (i) review of financial information of
the Company; and (jii) oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee consists of Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas and
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS as the independent non-executive
Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the non-executive
Director. Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas currently serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

During the Year 2021, the Audit Committee has held three meetings
and performed the following works:

(a8) reviewed the Group’s annual audited consolidated financial
statements for the Year 2020 and interim unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2021;

(b) reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements;

(c) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and related
matters; and

(d) considered and made recommendations on the change of the
external auditors of the Group, and the terms of engagement.

The Company’s annual results for the Year 2021 have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
22 January 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance
with rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG code. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to, among other
things, (i) make recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure for all directors and senior management’s remuneration
and remuneration policy; (i) review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposal with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; (i) make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of all Directors and senior management; (iv) review and
make recommendations to our Board on other remuneration-related
matters, including benefits-in-kinds and their compensation payable
to our Directors and senior management; and (v) consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Lau Ping Cheung
Kaizer and Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS as the independent non-
executive Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the non-
executive Director. Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management are
determined with reference to the responsibilities, workload, the time
devoted and the performance of the Group. The Remuneration
Committee also ensures that no individual will be involved in
determining his/her own remuneration.

During the Year 2021, the Remuneration Committee has held one
meeting for reviewing the remuneration packages of the Directors and
the performance of them since the Listing.

EEHZETw
HINZET

KPR ZEZEFE—AZ+HRILFMNE
B WEREMHRAFEI 2B REEE BT
BETEEEREEE -FNEZEENTERES
(HEh gl ((MeREska R EEEBH M
REMERNBEREBOEESRREERE
ES(E2EEEENLDBEEAFTEER KM
HAEEEBENHNES (I E2REFThREREE
ERNFMEEESIRHER RS ;(viEs HE
WERMEE (BEENEERSREEBNEY
EARMEE Tt ESSREERES &
WERBAELER R B E T e &
B B DA R A B [ P9 EL A BB L BV (R 1R 1% 4 o

HWNEZESHBIUFRTESRIRERERIL
HmEEL BBSRIFHRITEETHRAZRERAMA
BY o LR T8 L BBSIEE#HIMEE G EF -

EFEheREEENFMSE2EHRME  T1F
E-FIRBFEARAEEREMET - HFMES

FERENALEAIG2EEEEESME-

RIEZ—FE #NEEEERT—REZ
BUB B LHEEENHFMTERERE

o mm

Annual Report FFE#R &5 2021 41



42 SEM Holdings Limited JB:Z1ZZ B R A E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continueqd)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the Year 2021 are as follows:

EEHZETw

HINZET @

RIECEE AT TR EB1 .56 SREE
BEERINN S —EERGHEER SN
FHEIENT

Number of
employee(s)

EEHE

Not exceeding HKD 1,000,000

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 January
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to,
among other things, () review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of our Board on a regular basis; (i) identify individual suitably
qualified to become Board members; (i) assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; (iv) make recommendations
to our Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors; and
(v) make recommendations to our Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on our Board and/or senior management.

The Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer
and Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas as the independent non-executive
Directors and Mr. Wan Man Keung as the non-executive Director.
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer currently serves as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEERRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continueq)

During the Year 2021, the Nomination Committee has held one
meeting for reviewing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, considering the qualifications of the retiring
Directors standing for election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, reviewing the structure, size, and
composition of the Board and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Committee considered that the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and the aforesaid policies have
been maintained up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision D.3.1 of the CG code.

During the Year 2021, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year 2021 in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainty
that may cost significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statements of the independent auditor of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
91 to 99 of this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year 2021, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its non-audit services
of MOPO.4 million representing interim review for the 6 months period
ended 30 June 2021 and filing of tax returns of a subsidiary of the
Company for the year of assessment 2020/21; and Moore Stephens
CPA Limited, in respect of its services being the annual audit fee for
the Year 2021 was approximately MOP0.98 million.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to safeguard the
Group’s assets and investments and the Shareholders’ interest and
conducts a review on an ongoing basis. The Board acknowledges
that such risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
conducted review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company in aspects of the Group’s
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions through the effort of the Audit Committee.

The Group currently has no internal audit function and the Board
reviewed that it is more cost effective to engage an external
independent consultant instead of recruiting a team of internal
audit staff to perform such annual review function. During the Year
2021, LIF Consultants Limited (the “Consultant”) was engaged to
review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system. The Consultant worked closely with the Group to identify risk
components and risk owners in different aspects through interviews
with and workshops provided to the Group’s management. Also,
the Consultant assisted the Group to evaluate the adequacy of the
existing mitigation plans. In addition, an independent review was
conducted by the Consultant under the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisation of the Treadway Commission’s 2013 framework
(“COSO” to identify weaknesses and enhance the effectiveness and
efficiency of the internal control system of the Group. Last but not
least, findings and recommendations resulting from the review were
reported to and discussed with the Audit Committee and the Board,
and the Consultant concluded that no significant area of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance control and risk
management of the Group has been identified.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEERRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board had reached the conclusion that the Group’s
risk managements and internal control systems were in place and
effective.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s environmental,
social and governance strategy and reporting. The Board is
responsible for the Group’s ESG risk management and internal
control systems to ensure that the ESG strategies and reporting
requirements are met. Detailed information on the environmental,
social and governance practices adopted by the Group is set out in
the sections headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
(“ESG Report”) of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yip Chi Fai resigned as the company secretary and
Mr. Lo Kwun Kit, was appointed as the company secretary with effect
from 7 July 2021. Mr. Yip and Mr. Lo have confirmed that for the Year
2021, they have taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training. The biographies of Mr. Yip and Mr. Lo set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
in this report headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this report.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of insider information
with the aim to ensure the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality
requirement and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders and potential investors is essential for enhancing
investor relations and understanding of the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company has adopted the
shareholders’ communication policy with the objective of ensuring
that the Shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company (including the financial performance, strategic
goals and plans, material development, governance and risk profile).
The Company also recognises the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and
potential investors to make the informed investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
the website of www.semhld.com; where up-to-date information
on the Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access. Latest information of
the Group including annual and interim reports, report and other
corporate communications which will be sent to Shareholders and/
or published are updated on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website in a timely fashion.

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be held
on Friday, 24 June 2022. The notice of the annual general meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolutions, voting procedures
and other relevant information, will be sent to the Shareholders at
least 21 days before the annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEERRS

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Restated Articles, an extraordinary
general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the Restated Articles or the Cayman Islands
Company Law for Shareholders to move new resolution at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards proposing
a person for election as a Director, please refer to the “Procedure for
Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director” of the
Company which is posted on the Company’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the Board
through the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit B, 5/F, Wing Sing Commercial Centre, Nos.12-16 Wing Lok
Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong (email: general@semhlid.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year 2021. The Restated Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing electrical-related E&M engineering
works mainly consisted of supply, installation and maintenance of
electrical system, for new and existing buildings in the projects of
commercial and residential development, hotel development, casino
development, public properties and hotel renovation in Macau and
Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review on the Group’s business for the Year 2021 is set out under
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Listing was completed on 14 February 2020 and net proceeds
from the placing and public offer was approximately MOP73.2 million
(after deducting all listing related expenses). Please refer to the
Management Discussion and Analysis section in this annual report for
more details of the use of proceeds.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year 2021 are set forth in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 100 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year 2021 (2020
Year: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Friday, 24 June 2022.
A notice convening the meeting will be published in the Company’s
website and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner as
required by the Listing Rules in due course.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
21 June 2022 to Friday, 24 June 2022, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to
establish entitlements of attending and voting at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
20 June 2022.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years is set out on page 172 of this annual
report. Such summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year 2021 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set
out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES
The Company did not issue any debenture during the Year 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Restated
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the Company has
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders of approximately
MOP39.9 million and of approximate MOP34.6, respectively.

Movements of the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the Year 2021 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 170 and 103, respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year 2021, the Group’s five largest customers and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 97.0% and 69.4%
(Year 2020: 90.9% and 64.9%) of the total revenue of the Group,
respectively.

The Group’s five largest subcontractors and the largest subcontractor
accounted for approximately 49.0% and 13.4% (Year 2020:
71.8% and 18.7%) of the total subcontracting cost of the Group,
respectively.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers and largest supplier accounted for approximately 71.8%
and 18.3% (Year 2020: 78.6% and 31.6%) of the Group’s total
purchases for the Year 2021, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

Employees

The Group has maintained good relationship with our employees.
The Group offers to our employees salary, bonuses and other
allowances. In general, the Group determines employee salaries
based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority. The
Group has assessed the performance of our employees, which forms
the basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses and
promotions.

Customers

The Group has established stable business relationships with our
major customers. Our long-term business relationships with our
major customers and suppliers would further enhance our market
recognition and enable us to attract more potential business
opportunities.

Suppliers and subcontractors

The Group carefully evaluate the performance of our suppliers and
select them based on a number of factors such as pricing, quality
of material or equipment provided, timeliness of delivery and ability
to comply with our requirements and specifications. The Group will
review and assess their performance on an ongoing basis.

The Group also closely assess the performance of our subcontractors
and select subcontractors based on their experience relevant to the
particular project as well as their availability and fee quotations. The
Group will review their performance on an ongoing basis. Subject to
the Group’s capacity, resource level, cost effectiveness, complexity of
the projects and customers’ requirements. The Group is accountable
to our customers for the works performed in a project, including those
carried out by our subcontractors.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors confirm that the Group’s related party transactions
as set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
were continuing connected transactions, which were exempt
from all disclosure requirements, annual review and independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report are as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wun Chi Wai
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wan Man Keung (Chairman)
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas

In accordance with the Restated Articles, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new
Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next following general meeting after appointment.

TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANT

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation
to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its holding company
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Year 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
on 14 February 2020 and are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Restated Articles.

The non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors have been appointed for a fixed term of three years
commencing on 14 February 2020 and are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Restated Articles.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company or any
member of the Group, which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 22 to 30 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the requirements of the Model Code for
the Year 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in the note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions. None of the Directors waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for the Year 2021.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive to
eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
Details of the retirement benefits scheme are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Restated Articles, the Directors and other officers
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duties or supposed duties in their respective offices,
except such (if any) as shall be incurred or sustained through their
own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for
the Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or incurred,
arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year 2021 and up to the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in any business which were in competition or
were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly with the Group’s
business which needs to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year 2021 was the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of the SFO, which had to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
in which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long positions in the ordinary Shares
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REBRZETE

Total number Approximate

of Shares and percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held (L) share capital
FR¥FRZ (7 R
HERARZ (5 BEITRAN
EEHSA 517 #m4E (L) SRl
(Note 1)
Bta#1)
Mr. MK Wan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
FR®BEE REEGEEN#ED (1772)
Notes: Wt

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. SEM Enterprises Limited (“SEM Enterprises”) is owned as to 77.0%,
20.0% and 3.0% by Mr. MK Wan, Mr. CW Wun and Mr. Yu respectively.
Hence, Mr. MK Wan is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
SEM Enterprises under the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continueq)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of associated
corporations of the Company

EFRTBITHASRKRG - HEERK
MREEEPFZETRKE @

RAEQATEBEBRNEBRZITE

Approximate

Total number percentage

Name of associated of shares of issued

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of Interests corporations held (L) share capital

FriFien BEITREH

EENS 517 #mtE AR TS (L) L E =Rl
(Note 1)
oz,

Mr. MK Wan Beneficial owner, interest in a SEM Enterprises 7,700 77.0%

FRMBAgE controlled corporation, interest

held jointly with others
BmER A REREGEEZ#
mBEEMAHEEIFE 2 #E

Mr. CW Wun Beneficial owner, interest held SEM Enterprises 2,000 20.0%
FEREE jointly with others
Em#Es A HEMHHE
HBEZEG:
Mr. Yu Beneficial owner, interest held SEM Enterprises 300 3.00%
BT E jointly with others
BmEA A BEEMBHE
FBEZ#m
Note: /‘7/9‘5?‘ .

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
interests or short positions of the persons, other than the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, in the Shares or underlying Shares
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRNRKRG RAERMRMN 2 e
RXE
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Long positions in the Shares RERHRZEE
Total number Approximate
of Shares and percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held (L) share capital
FrisR 9 K BRITRAN
IRt B #ENE MR D 4R B(L) o E = e
(Note 1)
oz
SEM Enterprises Beneficial interest (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
BmiEa (Witz)
Ms. Lam Yin Interest of spouse (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
Mzt foiBts (Hfat2)
Notes: Wt

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Ms. Lam Yin is the wife of Mr. MK Wan and is deemed to be interested in
the Shares which are interested by Mr. MK Wan under the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors
were not aware of any person (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest and short position in
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

Each of the controlling Shareholders has made an annual declaration
to the Company that for the Year 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report, he/she/it and his/her/its associates have complied
with the terms of non-competition undertakings (“Non-Competition
Undertakings”) given in favour of the Company which are contained
in the Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking. Details of the Non-
Competition Undertakings are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
status of compliance by each of the controling Shareholders with
the undertakings in the Non-Competition Undertakings and as far
as the independent non-executive Directors can ascertain, there
is no breach of any of the undertakings in the Non-Competition
Undertakings.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or (i) require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
were entered into by the Company during the Year 2021 or subsisted
at the end of the Year 2021.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 22 January 2020, the Company conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) as incentive or reward
for contributions that the eligible participants have made or may
make to the Group. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to any employee, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, client, partner or joint-venture partner of the
Company or its subsidiary (including any Director or any director of
the Group’s subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time employment
with or otherwise engaged by the Company or any subsidiary at
the time when an option is granted to such person under the Share
Option Scheme or any person who, in the absolute discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for the Shares thereby linking their interest
with that of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, in
their absolute discretion make offer to the Eligible Participants. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from the date of adoption, after which period no further options will
be granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted or exercised prior thereto or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme (together
with options which may be granted under any other share option
schemes) shall not exceed such number of Shares as equals to 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the Listing Date.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each grantee (including both exercised or
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board, but in any event will not be less
than the highest of () the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date of the particular option, which must be a
business day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
shown in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date of the particular
option; and (i) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date of the
particular option.

There were no share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme nor were any share options granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption date and up to the date of this annual report. The
total number of Shares available for grant under the scheme was
200,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 31 to 47 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conduct, employment and the environment. The
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”, which forms part of
this annual report, is set out on pages 64 to 90 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has material impact on the business and operation of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the minimum public float required under the Listing Rules during the
Year 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and has
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters,
which include the review of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year 2021.

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the
Company on 30 November 2021 to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year 2021 have been
audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Man Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2021

T FIRIR - HERERHRS

INTRODUCTION

The Group is principally engaged in provision of E&M engineering
services. Over a decade of development, the Group realises
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) are indispensable
aspects to be incorporated in long-term development strategy. With
this regard, the Group gradually enhances operational practices and
develops ESG standards in a sustainable manner. Looking forward,
the Group commits to establish a corporate culture that is better
aligned with the expectations from stakeholders.

ESG governance structure

The Board holds the overall responsibility to oversee the Group’s
ESG objectives, strategies, priorities, targets and goals, as well as the
related policies and frameworks. Meetings are arranged regularly to
evaluate the effectiveness of the current policies and procedures and
develop appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance. In
addition, the Group’s business and functional departments worked as
ESG working groups, which assist to monitor the implementation of
relevant strategies and collect data in their respective areas.

Reporting boundary

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”), which summarises the
Group’s initiatives and key performance indicators (‘KPIs”) for the
Year 2021. The ESG Report covers the business impacts of its E&M
engineering services in Macau and Hong Kong.
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INTRODUCTION (continued) =@

Reporting principles

HEERRA

The ESG Report has been prepared based on four reporting ESGIR&EJHIZB/ & EHiRBIMEE27FF &R
principles which are in compliance with the Environmental, Social and &t & R &AM EIE5 | INIERE RERER o
Governance Reporting Guide set forth in Appendix 27 to the Listing

Rules.

Materiality

BEMN

Quantitative

21t

Consistency

— i

Balance

T4

The Group undertook materiality assessment to ensure the ESG Report addresses concerns
from stakeholders. The assessment started from identifying CSR issues from four different
aspects, including environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating
practice and community investment. Based on the 24 issues identified, interviews and
questionnaires were conducted to collect opinions from internal and external stakeholders.
For details of the assessment result, please refer to the section headed “Materiality
assessment” in the ESG Report.

RERETEARMS G URERESGIR S5t 0 R RF {7 & BIRE X - sTEREETEBY TS
HXRBHEXLEEEZE BRERERE - BEARF LER SEEIRMLERE R
BEMF24EZE AEEETAXKBERAE  MKERBRINBFHFHDENER
BRLERFE  F2RAESGREEA TG —He

To ensure stakeholders can have a better understanding of this ESG report, all
methodologies, assumptions, and source of conversion factor used to calculate the KPIs are
disclosed in respective sections in the ESG report.

RIERFT N EENBEG U T RAESCHR S A RN St EREVIE RN E KRR
HERBUINESGR S EE S EHKE

Unless stated otherwise, the Group’s methods used to calculate the KPIs are consistent
with last year. During the Year 2021, the ESG impact of the Group’s business operations in
Hong Kong have been included and relevant comparative KPIs disclosed have been revised
accordingly.

BREAERBAN AEEANG ERREERERNFEAREF R -R_BE_—FE K
BREWARTERNEBNEBEENESCGHE > AR BENER L RAREMIERITE
MERE(EET o

This ESG Report is prepared on an objective and unbiased manner to ensure that the
information provided reflects the true picture of the Group’s performance.

AESGHREUZE - TRABHANRR URFRFAEHNENRBREEEXENEE

Bt e
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INTRODUCTION (Continued)
Stakeholder engagement

Listening to stakeholders is one vital mean in assisting the Group to
identify and balance risks from difference perspectives, this helps it to
develop policies and set corporate goals. The Group keeps abreast of
stakeholders’ expectations through various communication channels.

ERERRED

HERFNENEREHIAERLTRAEH
MEkFERENEEZANZ— AR AEEF
XER -FEEBBREBER
BYRENHENRE AXFHERRBENE

Below sets forth the channels used for communication with respective B &40 o
stakeholder group.
Stakeholder Group Communication Channel
FihEER BBRE
Customers e Customer satisfactory surveys e EEMEERT
®R e Project meeting e IEHEH
Employees e Annual appraisal o FENE
B8 e Training o 3EZF|
e Meetings s EBE
e Internal announcement o NEAM
Suppliers/Sub-contractors e Project meeting e IBEEEH
HEm  HEE e Supplier assessment o HEERTH
e Site visiting e EMER
Investors/Shareholders e General meeting e REKRE
BEEBR e Annual and interim reports o FEKTH®RE
e Circular/announcement o RN
Community groups e Corporate website LINGTF =D
HE @R e Industrial dinner o TEMRE
e Corporate social responsibility activities o ¥t & SEEH

The Group values the feedback from stakeholders. If you have any
thoughts and suggestions on the ESG Report, please share them to
the Group at general@semhld.com.

REBSERFNENREBRRE
WEBTMIEERREZ ABiBgeneral@semhld.
COMBEREF D F ©

BTN UHESG
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INTRODUCTION (Continued)

Materiality assessment

A materiality matrix was developed based on the replies from
stakeholders, which 16 critical issues were identified. Among the
critical issues, approximately 44% are related to employment and
labour practices, followed by operational practices at approximately
31%, and environment protection at approximately 25%.

R EN R E

& 19

IMPACT ON STAKEHOLDERS

IMPACT ON BUSINESS ¥i¥ 75952

=@
BAMT M

FEBRRBEFOENSERTENEERE L H#
EI6EEEZZE - NEEZHZET > 44% L R (R

RELERERH ERN1%BEEEHRERM
MR #925% BRI IREEFH R

® 2

A
=

Environment Employment and Operational l Community
® protection g labour practices @ practices “ investment
ET BRRS TR B \», HERE
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INTRODUCTION (Continued)

Materiality assessment (Continued)

Details of the 24 issues identified for materiality assessment are listed

=@
BAM T @

BAM B B24EZENFBEIRAT

below:

1 Air emission ® 13 Other benefits and welfare g
BE mHF HiFa KR Er]

2 Noise pollution ® 14 Prevention of child labour and forced labour g
IRER 5 b2 T R agflss T

3 Wastes management 15 Safety working environment and g
EEEYEE ® occupational hazards

Z2HNTERIERBEDE

4 Dust pollution ® 16 Development and training g
D EETS Zk ERRIE

5 Water use and efficiency ® 17 Quality assurance @
IKERE R R = HERTE

6 Energy use and efficiency ® 18 Protection of intellectual property rights @
RETR A R = IREEFNHERE

7 Energy use and efficiency ® 19 Consumer data protection @
RERE A R E HEEBIRRE

8 Natural resource management ® 20 Anti-corruption @
TABRER REE

9 Climate change ® 21 Whistle-blowing policy @
RIZEE BIRBER

10 Employment management g 22 Supply chain management @
BEEIE HAEEEIE

11 Discrimination and equal opportunity Q 23 Sub-contractor management @
IR TS NEEER

12 Promotion and compensation system Q 24 Community investment 55\\
B R FH IR HERE A
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group strives to identify sources that may have potential
direct and indirect impacts to the environmental form its operation
in various aspects including the use of materials and resources,
waste management, water pollution and air emission. In case any
are identified, the Group commits to work against these sources
to minimise the impact and seek alternatives to work around.
Environment management system was established focusing on
wastes reduction and resources saving and efficiency which will be
discussed in turn below.

During the Year 2021, the Group was not prosecuted for any breach
of any applicable environment laws and regulations, including but
not limited to Law no. 2/91/M regarding the environment law of
Macau, Law no. 8/2014 regarding the law of prevention and control
of ambient noise, Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 358 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

Emissions

Sources of emissions

The Group’s E&M works mainly consisted of supply, installation and
maintenance of various electrical system such as energy supply
system, escalator and lift, heating system, ventilation system, air
conditioning system, low voltage system, distribution board and
switchboard, communication lines system, building automation
system, lightning protection system, fire detection and protection
system, security and alarm system, and plumbing and drainage
system.

These works are usually manual works which do not require intensive
heating process (e.g. welding), and do not involve the use of heavy
machines and equipment. As such, air emissions resulted from
heating and fuel combustion activities are limited.

IRIG (ReE
FEBRNNZEEHNEETIHIRIBEMN
ERMEREERENKR @EERYH KA
B BERYEE KSR RERIR - W H R E
FBEXENRR FEBAENZFRIRET
RE REBRERMD UBRERAFRE-TE
EEZUFENROERY) BHHNBERKESS
RNIRIGEERM SR T X o

RIEI—FE AEETERERTAES
NIRBZEREEMZIEST @FEEFRER
F2/91/MSE7E GLRMRIBMELAMS) 5
8/20145% 51 (RN AR R IEFIIRIZ R S WA
B BEAPEINB(ERSLETEA D RE
BIEBISE358E (EEYI R B IRA) o

HEm

HEBA R R
FEERETETIZOEEBERARHMEE
ZEEFRE WERHERG BHHEBERE
BHERG EBRRG  CRRG BERSR
ERKEBE BEREARK - BFEHLER
M-ERE NKFARRERR  ZERR
ER20 UREERFKRM

ZEIRBEUAFRE EFREMABRE
(IR  BEERERERME KRG - AL
EMER R EHR G R B E LR BE R BER AR
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continuea
Emissions (Continued)

Sources of emissions (Continued)

For waste emissions, the Group does not generate any hazardous
waste, and wastage of construction materials is the only non-
hazardous waste generated from its works. These wastages are
usually scraps cut off from materials, such as cables and copper,
during the installation process due to difference in size of the materials
employed and the dimension of the working structure. However,
the amounts of wastages generated from works are limited. Scraps
are disposed to on site collection facilities which are managed by
employers or main contractors.

General activities associated to its business operations will also
generate emissions. They include daily general usage of gasoline
fuels, electricity and water from staff quarters, fuels consumed from
motor vehicle for travelling between construction sites, and paper
usage for construction drawing and general documentation.

Measures and initiatives

As the generation of emissions from the Group’s operations are
minimal, except for maintaining the current level of emissions, the
Group has not established any reduction targets yet. However, the
Group is committed to continually explore the possibilities of further
reduction opportunities in the future. Despite the absent of emission
targets, the Group continuously employs the following measures to
maintain the way to build in a sustainable manner.

Waste management is always a crucial subject of the Group as it
creates great cost saving opportunities. With this regard, the Group
reviews consistency of workings, drawings and specifications to avoid
wastage of materials as a result of possible re-work. For procurement,
the Group purchases materials with the most suitable size to reduce
excessive cut-offs and re-use scrapped materials where possible.

With respect to air emissions, the Group promotes resources saving
and efficiency to reduce emissions for its activities from staff quarter
and general office. For details of the measures and initiatives, please
refer to the section headed “Use of resources” in this ESG Report. In
addition, with the aim to ease gaseous fuel consumption emissions,
the Group had replaced the daily general usage of liquefied petroleum
gas stoves and boilers with electronic appliances for cooking and
heating during the Year 2021.

iﬁiﬁ.1% A% (;

BEn Y @

BER Y RIR ()

MEEVMHRME  AEBIBRELERNESEE

Y BRMERYIBEIREENE—ES
BRY ZEERVERHEREBRETHNF
BAMHRT B ITRREBHNR T RIS
(N BE KR TIEI TR 28T TIREE
NERMHBERER -BRERERNBRENAE
AEBEENIRGWERERN -

HEFBEBEEBN—REBTEELESFRY -
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KFERET M2 BB BB TR
LU 32 SRR ;e — AR XA+ P FR B9 AR 3R ©

15t K (85

MR AEEEEELENBIREDR D RERER
BYFEIOK T 5 » A [ i R B E R R BEE 1R ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continuea
Emissions (Continued)

Measures and initiatives (Continued)
Below sets out the KPlIs for different types of emissions during the
Year 2021.

iﬁiﬁ.1%uz

BEn Y @

HeHRERE @

TXHINFEENFERIR S —FENEE
PRARWIEIZ

Unit 2021 2020
=X} —Z--fF “TTEF
Gaseous fuel consumption emissions  RESIAELHFEHEY
NOx emissions ﬁ%f EEERR kg T3 27,460.62 51,254.28
SOx emissions ine=Nokz1356/) kg T2 136.62 255.00
Vehicles emissions =Lt 36
NOx emissions [RESIHRY) kg T3 0.78 1.00
SOx emissions =R k=3¢ kg T2 0.02 0.02
PM emissions PMEEHY) kg T3 0.06 0.07
Greenhouse gas emission in COze BERBHERY
MZEEREEHE)
Scope 1 - Direct emissions HEN-BEERWY
Stationary combustion sources BEEMER tonnes M 0.45 0.84
Mobile combustion sources BENNER tonnes M 3.42 2.88
Scope 2 - “Energy Indirect” emissions BE2- TR H
Electricity purchased SNEES Note 1 fffzE1 tonnes Mg 70.89 78.77
Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions EERE Rl S 16y
Paper waste disposed at landfils HEBERERER tonnes M 4.96 5.30
Electricity used for processing fresh BRI BRIk K
water and sewage by government SKERNEN
department Note 2 [ff5E2  tonnes Mg 0.53 1.25
Non-hazardous waste BEEEN
Paper FiA tonnes M 1.03 1.10
Notes: it

1. For electricity, the emission factor of 0.820 kg/kWh and 0.710 kg/kWh
are available in Companhia de Electricidade de Macau’s Sustainability
Report 2020 and Hong Kong Electric’'s Sustainability Report 2020
respectively.

2. For water, the emission factor of 0.231 kg/m® and 0.417 kg/m® are
available from Macao Water's Sustainability Report 2020 and Water
Supplies Department’s Annual Report 2019/20 respectively.

1. TMEANMES > BEMFREE0.820F = FREK
0.710F =/ FTERI DN BEMEHRGE
RABD _Z_EBFIKBERRESREBE_Z
—EEVFBEERRETER-

2. FAKMES  HFRAR0.231F 5% LA KK
0.471F 5= /U A KB F R BRFIBERAK S
TEREURBERRRERABE RN
TEFERETER-
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continveq) IRIFRE »
Use of resources ERFER

The Group keeps promoting green concepts to raise employees’ ZAEBNEHESEIES  URSEIHHEE
awareness about the environment footprint created from daily SEFREMMIRIEEHINER AEEHZENITE
operations. In order to build a green working environment, the Group 1815 > REBREHEREHIRIEBER R B IR
continuously develops and implements environmental policies and BIRERENAKRIEK o
practices in achieving resources saving and efficiency.
O
) ©
A

y

/
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PAPER SAVING
B AROR

WATER SAVING
EESLERIN

GREEN
PROCUREMENT

KR ERE

ENERGY SAVING
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continuea

Use of resources (Continued)

The Group’s major resources consumptions were sourced from
the electricity and water consumed by office and staff quarters
for daily operation/living. The Group’s premises where they are
located did not encounter any issue in sourcing water. To ensure the
implementation of a low-carbon workstyle, the Group’s ESG working
group will actively review electricity and water bills to detect abnormal
consumption and investigate if any significant usages are noted.

During the Year 2021, as some of the Group’s management stationed
in Hong Kong had reduced the travel to Macau, several tenancies of
the Group’s staff quarter had ended. As a result, the overall usage
of electricity and water from staff quarter have been decreased
accordingly. On the other hand, the Group had acquired one
workshop and leased one office to cope with the Group’s business
development in Macau and Hong Kong during the Year 2021. The
Group targets to reduce energy consumption intensity continuously
by inspiring its employees on conservation habitats and regularly
monitor the consumption of energy. Below sets out the KPIs for the
consumption of respective sources. The disclosure for the use of
packaging materials is not relevant to the Group’s businesses.

iﬁ iﬁ. 1% i (
BRER @)

FEBNTIEERHEDRERLAERELR
EHEEE LEPTHERNKE  AEBEFTEH
N5 PR UK B I RIS B AR I R R o A R R R AR T
ERAE > ZEBMESGL /AR RIS

EEERKEER NERERHE WHFEEM
%kf@ﬂ B REARE

RZB-—FE ARTEESNOHEEBEEAR
BT RIERPINRE AEECRIE#MNHET
BEEG-FIL ETEENEEABERAK
EBUHEERL -Z—FHE AEER T -—F
EEE—EERRER—BRAE  UEHEE
EERMRERANEFER - AEENERREE
BEBEEEEMNEA BB R EHRERE R
B Tﬁhﬁ%/ﬂﬁMF'TKﬁﬂxkf
HEENFRENIER - BEMEARE
A E B R EFS R

Unit 2021 2020
B —EZ—fF —EIEH
Energy consumption AEIRIHFE
Offices and workshops WNERE- kWh 25,368.00 10,887.00
Staff quarters ETES kWh 62,756.00 88,811.00
Energy consumption intensity RERHERE kWh/unit 8,011.27 11,077.56
Water consumption IKGHEFE
Offices and workshops WMAE R ER md 59.00 =
Staff quarters BTES® m? 1,092.00 2,577.00
Water consumption intensity IOHEEE m3/unit 164.43 429.50

Notes: The water consumptions of several office premises are not included
above as the water is provided by building management and shared
among different tenants.

et ERUESABERRIIGROEKE RAZ
RKBREFERERREME YHARERDHE-
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continuea

The environment and natural resources

Despite the Group’s E&M works will not have direct significant impact
to the environment, the quality of its works may lead to serious
environment issues, such as unintentional leakage, if systems are not
properly installed. The Group committed to execute a robust quality
management system to ensure that system can be operated as
intended. Details of the quality management system are discussed
under the section headed “Product responsibility” in the ESG Report.

Climate change

With response to the defining issue of our time, the Group has
identified climate-related risks and evaluate the potential financial and
operational impacts on its business operation during the Year 2021.
With reference to the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate
related Financial Disclosures framework, the climate-related risks and
the corresponding mitigation measures are as follows:

Judging from the labour-intensive operations of the Group, acute risks
arising from storm, fold and heatwave will pose significant delay to the
projects’ progress. During the extreme weather events, workers may
not be able to commute to clients’ work site and affect the delivery
schedules of raw materials. In additions, the structure installed and
materials on site will also exposed to risk of damage, resulting in
financial losses. On the other hand, as majority of the Group’s works
are performed indoor, gradual changes in mean temperatures will lead
to higher chronic risk of occupational hazards due to stuffy working
environment.

Regarding to the physical risks identified above, project meetings
will be held regularly so that actions plan can be developed timely to
rectify any potential delays. Also, precaution measure to safeguard the
structure installed and materials on site are employed prior to possible
extreme weather events. They include, among others, (i) inspecting
drainage inlets to ensure water discharge will not be blocked and
installing water pump, if necessary, (i) using plastic sheeting to
keep floodwater out for temporary protection, and (i) wrapping and
securing materials on site. Furthermore, project team will inspect
the ventilation condition and employ ventilation fans on work sites to
prevent workers suffered from heatstroke.

iﬁiﬁ.1% A% (;
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Employment

Human resources are the cornerstone of the Group, and the Group
commits to shoulder the responsibility to provide them with safe
working environment and support their career advancement.

The Group is subject to labour laws and regulations which includes,
but not limited to, Labour Relations Law, Employees’ Compensation
Insurance Ordinance, Social Security System, laws and regulations
for the employment of non-resident worker, regulation on prohibition
of illegal work and lists of restricted and prohibited works provided by
minors.

To ensure compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations,
the Group have established human resource management system to
govern, among others, recruitment process, hiring and termination
procedures, promotion and compensation system, health and safety
management and training and development program of the Group.

The Group respects human rights and strictly prohibited any act of
discrimination in the workplace. To ensure this can be eliminated,
standard performance criteria are used to ensure that every
employee are evaluated equally and consistently. Gender, age, race,
skin color, nationality, religion and political affiliation will never be a
factor for consideration of performance evaluation. In additions, the
Group encourages employee to voice out if any dishonorable act is
observed.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 66 (2020: 42)
employees and directors with direct employment relationship,
and the overall Group’s employee turnover rate was 31% (2020:
3%). During the Year 2021, the Group had hired 42 employees, of
which approximately 55% were additional employees for project
department, followed by 38% were hired for the replacement of
resigned employee, and 7% were hired for handling administrative
and accounting works.

HE—ERERFIER

2%

ANERBTEBNER  ZEBR NN EES
HERULZENTHERE T IFERERREDN
BfEe

AEBABTH L EARRER BREEFTRR
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RHERETHERES LARRER FEEEZIL
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR HE-RBERFIER @
PRACTICES (Continued)
Employment (Continued) B1E =
Below set forth KPls of the Group’s employment: TXEHAE B RENRBRBERISE
2021 2020
k-l 3 “EIEF
Number of Turnover Number of Turnover
employees rate employees rate
EBEAK MR = EEAH TMARE
By gender Sk 3l E b
Male B 52 33% 33 4%
Female 2z 14 26% 9 -
By age group RERARE D
30 or below 30 ILLT 17 58% 7 -
31-50 31E505% 27 36% 17 7%
51 or above SIRIMU L 22 10% 18 -
By job position BRI(FrEE52
Top and senior management RELEREERE 13 24% 12 10%
Middle management PREEE 24 22% 13 -
Entry level AR 29 48% 17 -
By geographical region EHER 5
Macau il 28 28% 22 -
Hong Kong &8 38 38% 20 6%

Notes: The employee turnover rates are calculated using number of i . EBERAXREREEABBU S _—FE
employees leaving employment divided by average number of EHREREAHEE.
employees for the Year 2021.
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Health and safety

Risks of accidents and injuries to workers in construction sites are
inherent. The Group has established occupational health and safety
management system to minimise accidents in the workplace and
ensure work sites are operated in compliance with relevant law
and regulation. In the Year 2021, the Group did not receive any
prosecutions in relation to occupational health and safety. No work
injuries and work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three
years.

HE-EERFIER @
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BEITHTANERRGEEARBEAMEE &
EEERUMXREELE2EERG  LIRIME
BARRNSESRAERD R TMREAERER
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Development and Training

As an E&M engineering company, the development and training
program heavily focus in the safety area. Due to the nature of the
Group’s operating practice, it often hires foreign workers from labour
quota and engages sub-contractors to carry out its works. As such,
the Group must provide adequate safety training to ensure employees
and employees of sub-contractors are familiar with the Group’s safety

policy.

QOur training programs are developed on project basis, this is because
the risk of injuries associated to the works content may vary. The
Group training programs cover various aspects which include, among
others, machine operation, work at height, work in hot weather, on-
site materials management, electricity application, fire prevention and
emergency procedure.

During the Year 2021, the Group offered a total of 2,341 (Year 2020:
3,508) hours of internal safety training courses to 215 (Year 2020:
150) workers, including our employees and employees of sub-
contractor, and the average training hours completed per worker
was approximately 11 (Year 2020: 23) hours. As the employees of
sub-contractor do not have direct employment relationship with the
Group, the calculation for percentage of employees trained for sub-
contractor is not applicable.

HE-—EBRERFIER @

EELEE]

ERKETREAR  REAFIIHI TEMER
B -ANTERSERHROME  HEEK
SIFRRERMEIANTLERYBEEARIIE
Ft > AEBLAERHBENNRZ2IEI > UERF
BERDEHENEEATFIEENZEHR-

FEBEBEIG BB IRFEEMSIE > IETHER
S TERBERNZERBRAIERTR A&
BEEIFERESEER  2F (HHaR) #
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E :1150%) TA (BEEMNEERYEENE
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR

PRACTICES (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

HE-—EBRERFIER @

BB RIE

2021 2020
—B_—F “ETEF
Percentage Average Percentage Average
of employees training of employees training
trained hours trained hours
RiIEEBALL THEINH TIESESL  THEIEH
Workforce by gender R DHES

Male B 50% 18 52% 47
Female 2z 36% 25 50% 41
Sub-contractor SEH N/A T8 10 N/A R4 20

Workforce by job position BRIEEfIEI2NES
Top and senior management REKRSHREIEE 69% 21 17% 65
Middle management RAREIRE 50% 20 77% 39
Entry level kS 34% 17 56% 49
Sub-contractor SEH N/A T8 10 N/A R 20

Note: The percentage of employees trained is calculated using number of

employees trained divided by number of employees at the end of the
Year 2021.

Labour standards

The Group strictly prohibits any child or forced labour, or any unfair
treatment to our employees and does not employ staff who are
below 18 years of age. With this regard, the Group has established
recruitment procedure which requires that identity, age and other
personal information of all job applicants must be verified to ensure
that they are physically and conditionally qualified to be hired. If any
incidents of above are discovered, the Group will immediately stop
the child from working, report to the local labour bureau in time for
any incidents of child labour and investigate the cause and factor
leading to forced labour. In addition, disciplinary actions will be taken
to punish the wrongdoer.

During the Year 2021, there were no reported non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations relating to preventing child or forced
labour.

et ZIMEEBDEEZIEEARGU—Z " —
FEEBA#MGE-

BT AR

REBBREILEMETIAGSE T S ES
EHERATAFRFE T AEREABI18KUTE
Teomit 7EECHIERBRER  EXLEAZ
BEFTAERBENS O FRREMEAER X
ERESNEBRIEHTaRBAER WNHIRFE
A Lt EG AEESUMRIEZRETF &
RREMSBEREEMNELSF AEENR
H1%5 THREKREE < 15 > A E B 7R SR EAC
BED BATETAA

N TEC—FE AERTERSEAERERH
By 1k 8 T sl5g 55 TRVABREERIERAYIE R -
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply chain management

Suppliers and sub-contractors are vital business partner of the Group
as they contribute to assist the Group towards quality excellence.
Supplier/sub-contractor management policy was established which
defines the robust requirements and procedure in monitoring the
selection of suppliers and sub-contractors. Standard acceptance
procedure, such as obtaining attainment and business registration
documents, sample testing and site visiting, will be performed before
new supplier and sub-contractor are engaged. All approved suppliers
and sub-contractors are recorded in an internal approved list and are
subject to regular evaluation. Generally, the Group will invite more than
one supplier/sub-contractors from the approved list for each order/
sub-contracting work for quotation purpose. During the selection and
evaluation process, the Group will consider factors including, among
others, product quality, on-site performance, labour management,
safety management system and environmental responsibility.

The Group also requires its supply chain partners to uphold the
Group’s principles of ethical business conduct thereby minimizing the
environmental and social risk that may be encountered. Any suppliers
or sub-contractors with inferior past records of material environmental
or social accidents, such as excessive pollutions discharges to the
environment, and exploitation of workers, will be remove from the
approved suppliers list.

HE-EEER
g IR

HEBRDEEAEEREFEENEBGF
B REARERNBHAERERSERET
HIFHEM AEEERUHER SDEEEE
B ZHRAEEZEEREHER RO EEE
BRERREF RERMEESRDEEZA
RAITRENEWNER NEREEREEET
X AR RIS ER FRARB A NHER
RO EBEHYEEINAERAEE ) WARETER
e —RME  AEBRRUBAIBERF — 4
UEHES, DEEREEIE HEIRE
THRE-RRAEATEBRET ZEEBRETRE
mEB - RERR - FTER - Z2EEBHER
BRIEEEEAR-

FEBREREHBRESFEHRAESERNS
FEBBRTRA M EBIMNRERAEE
EEREERE - EABERERRBEHHEEH
FEHAFREHRNHEERND SR WEREH
BB Z SR RHE T > BBl e A
EErhfR o

2021 2020
—E-—F C—T-TE

Number of suppliers by geographical region ##3th& 8| 3 F L FERFEE
Hong Kong 58 55 28
Macau P 43 26
China s 3 3
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product responsibility

Quality control is one crucial process to the Group’s business as
this is the foundation leading to the Group’s success. The Group
established comprehensive policy governing the required procedure
to perform at the inception and completion of a project. To ensure the
quality of project implementation, members are assigned to project
teams according to complexity and scale of the project, and each
team member was assigned with specified duties.

Site supervisor is responsible for monitoring the quality of works
of employees and sub-contractors in real time. Project’s progress
meetings are held regularly to ensure our works meet customers’
specification, completed according to schedule and comply with all
relevant regulatory requirement. Furthermore, inspection checks are
performed for all materials, machineries and equipment delivered
before they are employed.

In addition, the Group, together with the customers, will perform site
acceptance test for all electrical system installed to ensure conformity
to specifications. If any defects detected within the defect liability
period, the project manager would investigate, and workers will be
arranged to address the defects. During the Year 2021, the Group
have not received any complaint or request for product recall from our
customers due to quality, safety and health issue in relation to works
performed.

As the Group’s business process does not involve advertising and
labelling practices nor possess significant consumer data, the impacts
relating to the protection of intellectual property and consumer data
are relatively immaterial to the Group. Nevertheless, to protect our
brand, all of our business logo have been properly registered. In the
event of intellectual property infringement by third parties, the Group
will engage its legal counsel to take necessary action against them.
In addition, all the software and information system employed in daily
operations are with legitimate licenses. On the other hand, contracts
between the Group and its employees contain a confidentiality clause
to prevent the disclosure of sensitive information. Proper internal
control procedures are employed in the Group’s operational and
information technology system to ensure that information will only be
access by authorised personnel/department of the Group.

HE-ZEERw

HEERNATEREBNERERRE REAER
AEEREHNORE - AEBCHERERE
BB MRS AERITHREFGEGER &
BEREBBRNER  ~EERFEEBNERN
RREODEEERSERE  EAEREBMRE
DECIEERS -

ITHTEESAREZEEERDEHINIIFE
R AEERERRTEEEESS  UEFRL
BYEERERKMATR LT 5P AERE
EER I REERFERAZA HEXNTH
FREME AR EETIRE -

o AEERRAT A HRAEMAECSZENER
RAETRGRUCAE > LIRS R HR
RESTEHNEREARE BECERET
AE WL T ANREZFRE - R T -—F
ErAERTEZETFPEMATIENEE
ZEREEHEMEBEENEARFNERERE

EXRe

HRTEENEBSRABRTE I RESRIZHIE
B EEEHEE R RILRRENHER
RHBEERBEAMNT ENAEREMSHE I
AEE-RM > RRERFPIVDE > RFIAEN
BERADELZAAM-HE=ZASRLNHAE
# FEERBFELZREREE RIS ENTT
Beltih BEEEPERNMERGTREER
MUBGEAFIRE - Z—HH AEEEHES
SR EHEA —BRBRRC U ISR E R
AR csEENEEREENKAKERAE
ERREEZERIRER UEFRERETHEERR
BAB /EFER-
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group commits to maintain a corporate culture with integrity,
probity and accountability through the establishment of relevant anti-
corruption policies. Code of conduct, conflict of interest policy and
privacy and confidentiality information were covered in the Group’s
internal control manuals which clearly defines the moral standards it
desired. In additions, corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is strictly
prohibited. Whistleblowing policy was established to allow employees
to report any misconduct or malpractice events observed on a
confidential platform, and will be duly investigated by the Group’s
senior management or audit committee. Any matters of genuine
concern are to be thoroughly investigated by the management and
actions will be taken accordingly.

Trainings and employee handbook, including information relating
to anti-corruption, were arranged and circulated to employees
and directors at the commencement of employment and during
employment (if there are any updates) to ensure employees are aware
of the philosophy, objectives, and policies of the Group.

During the Year 2021, there was no bribery, extortion, fraud or money
laundering found, and no legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees.

HE-SEER®

REE
REBRRNONBEGERHBENREREBRFRFH
BE-EBEKRBENTEXIL REBEMNAIBEZES
FHRETAZED A D EEBERUKRTAB &R
BEN HBAR R EMENEEZE LI &
HEMEANEE BRI FE - M HIE R
REE UL RBENFREBFEARSTEIRNER
TETANEREMH UTRALTEESHKEEREE
WEZEETETEERAE AERMKHEEE
PEEGFNEE T HEEETE -

IR 2 PR I R R R R B K (R R HA R (W
FEN MEEREEDEETFMBERERK
ERVER) URFRES THRAEENES
RRER

TR -FECAEERUEZRBER PR
HREF RO RIS TS R B A EE A
EBENEBITRIRERNERRE -
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SOCIAL - COMMUNITY

Community investment

The Group commits to support the communities through social
participation and had dedicated its focus in contributing the
environment, labour needs and health. The Group actively shares
social affairs to employees so as to increase their awareness to the
community, and eventually repay the society through participating
in social events and helping vulnerable groups. Looking forward,
the Group hopes to join hand with stakeholders to better serve the
community.

The foremost priority for the Group is to provide our employees with
a safe and healthy and comfortable working environment. During
the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has taken the following
precautionary measures at its workplaces to minimise the risk of
transmission:

° Enhancing implementation of hygienic measures in all
workplaces and provide guidance to strengthen employees care

for employees;

° Providing hand sanitizers inside company and workplace to fulfill
employees’ hand sanitizing needs;

e  Any person who has symptoms of fever, or other respiratory
symptoms would be advised to seek medical advice and would
be refused entry to workplaces;

e Arranging employees to work in shifts and work from home; and

° Encouraging employees to have vaccination.

HE-HE
HERE

FEERNNBBEMAESREIFTE  WEER
RBE B TERRBEFLEM - AEEIRB
HEEBNZNEEH URSHREHHENE
#o WEBBS MR LS R EESSHERERAER
BHE -REXRR AEERZUERFNERTS
B> BIF A HERSS

AEEBNEETERARERERZE BE
BRI TAEIRIE o F1a f K(COVID-19)E 1FHAME
REEBTEH T EHPTIRE T FEBRHE I - LARF
BRERGRERKE.

EPRE LRSI BITEAEREM i
M55 MMARE TN E TRAIE S ;

. ERBMEBREREMLT R LUnE R
BRRFHEX

. B R AR A 2 G E IR S Mt I IR B YR R
ERBIALRIERE  WIEEHEA L
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. ZHEEHRMETERERMA &

. HEETHEERE-
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ESG CONTENT INDEX

RIE- g RELATERS

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
e
[Em BARUER BEEH
A. Environmental
AIRIR
Emissions Al General Disclosure Environmental
BER) —AR I EEEE protection
Information on: IRIGRE
BERBERRAERBIN S KRR TP -H
EREERFEN
a) the policies; and
a) BERER ;K
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
b) BFHETABEAZENHEBERARGINE
Ko
Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
BB EE S AR R R B o B
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse Emissions
gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, B
intensity.
BHi (EEN) RERERE EE2) RERBEFREE (U
MEETE) K WER) BE -
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emissions
appropriate, intensity. B
FREEBEREEYRE QRS k (MER) BE-
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Emissions
where appropriate, intensity. BEB
FTEAREEEYEZ UUWEEE) &k WER) BE-
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and step taken to Emissions
achieve them. BE
HMPRET I BEN & B 1R e A B L B R P EREXAY
FERo
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Emissions
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction BER Y

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HINEEEERBEEEYNS E RIS ILAY
BEE B E K 2 E RS B RN 5 o
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE-HERERBRABSTEI @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
3]
fEm BEMIERE BESH
A. Environmental
(Continued)
AIRIE (&)
Use of resources A2 General Disclosure Use of resources
BIREERA — R EEE BIRER
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BRERER (BIEER KR EMEME) BIBER -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Use of resources
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity. BIREA
RELEDMNERE R HBEER B foh) 2
2 UTETREE REE-
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Use of resources
BIEKEREE- BIREA
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and Use of resources
steps taken to achieve them. BIRER
HMPRET IS REA MR B R R AEDEEBE R
PREXH9 25 B o
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Use of resources
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set BIRER
and steps taken to achieve them.
HEUSK BB AR KR I BRI SR8 » LUK PRET IR A
KM B R R AEDEE B IEPTREBI P 5 o
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Use of resources
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit BHIRfEA
produced.
Sk mPT A EEMENEE (UMETE) &k WER) &
FEBMGLSE-
The Environment and A3 General Disclosure The environment and
natural resources —AR R FE A natural resources
RIERKXAER Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on RIERRAER
the environment and natural resources.
BREETABRIERRAABRENEAZENEE -
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on The environment and

the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
B EFR I HIRIE R RABE RNE AR E KRB R
BEEAMEENTE-

natural resources
RIERKAER
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE-HEREBARZTRI @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
3k
EmE BUIER  Ht BESHEH
A. Environmental
(Continued)
AIRIE (&)
Climate change A4 General Disclosure Climate change
Rz — R EEE RIZE1E
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.
HREHEORKRAIEGHETAELERENEAR
EAERAE BERIEER ©
Ad A Description of the significant climated-related issues Climate change
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the RIEEE
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BB RO HETAELERENERRIEHE
EH KEHTH
B. Social
BAtE
Employment B1 General Disclosure Employment
= — IR EEE =
Information on:
BRAFMN R EE BB RS A TR R TF
HEZnlb  RIEGRUEREMFEREFND :
a) the policies; and
a) BEREK ;&
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
b) BTFHETABEAFZENEMEIZRRINE
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group Employment
and geographical region. 1%
R BERE  FRARN Rt R DNEE LS -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
geographical region. (=3

RIER s ERAER R E R DRV EE MK LR
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)
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Aspect KPI Description Section reference
3k
EmE BUIER  Ht BESHEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.AtE ()
Health and safety B2 General Disclosure
REREZS — R EEEE
Information on: Health and safety
ERRHEZ2IHRERFREEERREHENTE REEZE
B :
a) the policies; and
a) BEREE; &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
b) BTFHETABEAFZENEMEIZRRINE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in Health and safety
each of the past three years including the Year 2021, BREHEZS
BEZF BEZE—FE) SFRITHRNASEK
Eb==o
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and safety
RITEB/ERITIEE - fREREE R
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and safety
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. BREHEZS
BRI E R BERE 2 2 DURERAIIT R
BEm ke
Development and training B3 General Disclosure Development and
EIEYaE —MRIEEEEIE training
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills B3Rt
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
BRRAEEEIT LIFB S H# R SERVBUER o #
MIEANES) o
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Development and
employee category. training
BHMRREEEBTNRIMEER AL R R
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Development and
gender and employee category. training
BRI RESERE D SLEETMR NN TFIGE ZF R R

2o
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE-HERERBRABSTEI @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
3k
EmE BUIER  Ht BESHEH
B. Social (Continued)
B4t E @
Labour standards B4 General Disclosure
2 TAEH — R EEIE
Information on: Labour standards
BRAM L& T K aghles TH : T AR
a) the policies; and
a) BREKR, R
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forces labour.
b) BWIFHBTAEBATENEWEERBONE

B4 Description of measures to review employment practices Labour standards
to avoid child and forced labour. 2T %R
MRS R IR IB AR R TE A B e B T KI5 T o

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices LLabour standards
when discovered. T AR
T B IR ER S R EOH R A R B P ERERAY 5 B8 o

Supply Chain management B5 General Disclosure
T EE — R EFEE
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of Supply chain
the supply chain. management
BIEMEENIRIE RS RREEE - HEREIE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region Supply chain
management
Rt DR REEEE o HEREIE

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being management
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored. HEREIE
BRI RHERNIES > mERTHERIBG T
FEEEE » UM TREER %

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they management
are implemented and monitored. HrEREIE
Hut A BB R MR RS EIRENIRE R T REAIE
B> LU AERAIT R B ZR 5 7k o

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply chain
preferable products and services when selecting management
suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. HEEEE

B ETREHEERRERESRRFRERRRBNE
B> IR BB RAT R BE R T3 0%
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)
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Aspect KPI Description Section reference
3k
EmE BUIER  Ht BESHEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.AtE ()
Product responsibility B6 General Disclosure
EmEE — R EEEE
Information on: Product
BREFMRHEERNRBNERAEZZ ES B8 responsibility
ThREE MR EN EmEf
a) the policies; and
a BEREKR; &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
b) BFHETABEAXENEMEIERRINE
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to Product
recalls for safety and health reasons. responsibility
BENBEXERQHMPEZ 2 EERIERMER W EmET
B
B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints Product
received and how they are dealt with. responsibility
BERNERMRBNEFEEURER S E EmEE
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Product
protecting intellectual property rights. responsibility
Ho ot B A S I (R PR AN ERE B RERVIB A 0 EmEE
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product
procedures. responsibility
it E 20T B2 K E mEIWE T o EmEE
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Product
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. responsibility
HUE B BB RHMRE R FABREBER » MU BRI MAT R & EmEE

Bk
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE-HEREBARZTRI @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
3k
EmE BUIER  Ht BESHEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.AtE ()
Anti-corruption B7 General Disclosure
REE — R EEEE
Information on: Anti-corruption
BRIB LR ~ 1R s IFF RO B8R0 ¢ REE
a) the policies; and
a) BEREK; &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
b) BEBTFHEFETABEAZENEMEIRZRRFINE
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Anti-corruption
practices brought against the issuer or its employees REE
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
ﬁAiﬁiﬁﬂW“’ﬁ*’_}\iﬁﬁéﬁﬁjﬁe%%ﬁBﬁﬁfauﬁ
RBHNHE RFRER
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. REE
e E R R RER  URBERARTRERA
e
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Anti-corruption
directors and staff. REE
HirmEERETRENRESE-
Community investment B8 General Disclosure
HERE — R EFER
Policies on community engagement to understand the Community
needs of the communities where the issuer operates investment
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the HEKRE
communities’ interests.
BRUHE2ERTHREEMTHEREENBREE
BameEEtENmiBER
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community
EigREE- investment
HELSE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community
EEIHEMBAER investment

HerRE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIANZBENR S

Moore Stephens CPA Limited

K| MOORE

801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

T +852 2375 3180
F +852 23753828

www.moore.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SEM
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 100 to 171, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

REEtEER

Recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts

TEEH B B Rt i T IZAR 75 5 #9089

We identified the recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts as a key audit
matter due to the involvement of significant management
estimates in determining the contract revenue for each
electrical and mechanical engineering services contract in
progress.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group recognised revenue of MOP103,912,000 and
MOP78,264,000 mainly from provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering services to hotels and casinos,
public, commercial and residential properties in Macau
and Hong Kong, respectively by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period as disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. As set out in Notes 3 and 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, the amounts of revenue
recognised reflect the management’s estimate of each
contract’s outcome and stage of completion, which were
based on the input method by considering the proportion
of contract costs incurred for the work performed to the
end of the reporting date, relative to the total estimated
costs of the contract at completion.

ARREESETPENREM T RERBSHONEIW
mFY REXREEE M HFIR SR BB R
TRERBEANWmHER SERESEE

REE_ZS_—F+_A=+—HLEEE &EEHH
WERMFIFTINE  SEBEKRLERREHAREGNVERS
SThY P ER Fe R W 22103,912,00058 P9 71 52 78,26 4,00058 FS
70 FERB D BIERFI R EABARNENS RIR LS ALt
EEREEYERBEORER TRERY - WiRa 7
WRMFSRAFTE BB RSB EEEBHES
NERNREREERNGE ENERKEERRES B
RETIREENSHNMRAGTHFEANMGEHAEMRA
EEERBR PR RE AL

FAREtEIE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FZHENTRIEFABES S EHN G A

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue from
electrical and mechanical engineering services contracts
included:

° Understanding key controls on how management
estimates and revises the total contract costs and
margins and recognises revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts;

e Assessing the reasonableness of the total estimated
contract costs of significant projects by checking against
quotations, agreements or other correspondences
provided by subcontractors or suppliers, on a sample
basis;

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated profit
margins of significant projects, on a sample basis, taking
into account of the complexity and duration of the
projects and margins of similar completed projects;

HPEBRERBE BN REM T ERBEONRENRER
(25

s THABREEENMAMGE RETEEHIMAELIKIESR
RE BN REMITEZRB AW 2 T EEHIETE ;

s BERENEHAHEHREMHNKRE HREIHEME
R RFHEEARRB MR SO ENGENK ;

s KEtREENERMEAFENBEREUETIREENE
Ao iR SHEEREB G FERNSER ;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

REEtEER

Recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts (Continued)

EEKE B R LR & 4969 M at ()

FARETEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRBEMTEEMARETEENG X

Examining the accuracy of costs incurred to date and
stage of completion by checking the certificates or
invoices issued by the subcontractors or suppliers, on a
sample basis; and

Evaluating the reliability of the management’s forecast, on
a sample basis, by comparing the total actual contract
costs incurred at completion of completed projects
against the total budgeted contract costs.

BREEZEDEHNHEHLANZENERES
el B HA R PR ER EE E BUR AN VR HEME 5 K2

BBR O THETRFEENBRGAOMARERR
MEE SRR BT AEEETEA A EE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

REEtEER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

PR E SRR &4 B E R B EFFE

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables and contract assets
to the Group’s consolidated financial position and the
involvement of subjective judgment and management
estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses (“ECL”)
of the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets at the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets amounted to MOP51,635,000 (net of
loss allowance of MOP3,013,000) and MOP108,948,000
(net of loss allowance of MOP9,769,000) respectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
provided impairment allowances of MOP1,698,000 and
MOP6,015,000 for trade receivables and contract assets,
respectively.

HPERD BN EZ R R ENEERETEAHESE
ZEE REARBREZRIARGNEEN SEER
BMBRANEZMEURNTE SEENRSHKRE
WEZERRREHNEERRESESRE (RREEERED)
PR R EBHE R ERE L5t

ATET—F+"HA=+—H> EEENEKREZER

AR EHEED R A51,635,000/2F9 75 GOREEEE
3,013,0002F975) K 108,948,00038 F9 77 (30 BRES 8 #E
9,769,000;8F37T) cHE_E_—F+_-_HB=+—H1t
FEE, SEEMEREZEIARGNEERIRE
Bt B 21,698,000/ 97T 526,015,000/ FI 7t ©

FAREtEIE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FZHENTRIEFABES S EHN G A

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets included:

e Obtaining an understanding of how management
estimates the loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets;

e  Testing the integrity of information used by management
to develop the ECL assessment, including aging
analysis of trade receivables and contract assets as at
31 December 2021, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with the relevant sales
invoices;

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external valuation specialists appointed by
management of the Group;

RPIARREWE SRR ENEENRETENEFaE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

REEtEER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

FEWE IR R & A EER FEFE (4)

As disclosed in Notes 15 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements, management of the Group estimates
the amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables and
contract assets based on the Group’s internal credit
ratings, historical credit loss experience, aging analysis,
repayment history and/or past due status of respective
trade receivables and contract assets. Estimated loss rates
are based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information.

MR E M REM T 15KR28FINE > BEEEEEE
EEERKEZERRREGNEENTEBABEET
BB EERBRRE REDIT ERELR,HEAH
RER  RIBMEEBREZERRENEENE IR
EEBBZE GERRNREFARREHRANE
LEHRENRSL  URARMEERFHAEE-

FARETEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FZHENTRIEFABES S EHN G A

Involving our internal valuation specialists to review
the valuation methodology and parameters in the ECL
assessment;

Challenging management’s basis and judgment in
determining loss allowance on trade receivables and
contract assets as at 31 December 2021, including their
identification of credit-impaired trade receivables and
contract assets and the basis of estimated loss rates
applied (with reference to historical default rates and
forward-looking information); and

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

ZEAMNGEERERBREEBIBT G ERRN
BERERZH;

EREEEERENR _SE-_—F+-BA=+—HHE
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 were audited by another auditor who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those statements on 29 March 2021.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

Lai Hung Wai
Practising Certificate Number: PO6995

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—F_—F+__B=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—& —ToTH
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000
B 5 TR TEFMT
Revenue W= 5 182,176 70,239
Cost of sales THE 24 (160,701) (59,650)
Gross profit EF 21,475 10,589
Other income Haug A 7 827 1,275
Impairment losses under expected TEafRE 5518 ((FEfR(E aEsa))
credit loss (“ECL”) model, B TR EBE
net of reversal N px#EEE] 8 (7,713) (4,448)
Administrative expenses T (19,295) (18,198)
Finance costs B A (251) (©6)
Listing expenses kil - (8,531)
Loss before taxation PRI ARS8 9 (4,957) (19,409)
Taxation 18 11 (14) (806)
Loss and total comprehensive AR AN
expense for the year attributable to FABEREZR
owners of the Company Bz 48 %8 (4,971) (20,215)
Loss per share (MOP cents) ShEE CRPIW)
Basic SIS 13 (0.25) (1.04)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

fREMBAR

At 31 December 2021 R -E—_—F+_A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEHF
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000
FMIsE TR TP
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB K& E 14 39,264 15,822
Rental deposit feiae 15 119 48
Deferred tax asset RIEFRSINE E 16 256 =
39,639 15,870
Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables FE U & 5 BR 70 R EAth
FEWFRIE 15 54,862 47,720
Contract assets HHEE 17 108,948 77,214
Amount due from a related company FEW—FERAE QB FE 18 - 4
Pledged bank deposits BEIRIFIRITER 19 1,493 19,434
Time deposit EHIFER 19 28,194 6,474
Bank balances and cash RITEGRKRIEE 19 40,275 105,394
233,772 256,240
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables FET B Z R R E M
FETFIE 20 29,093 27,390
Contract liabilities BREE 17 773 4,612
Lease liabilities HESRE 21 895 761
Amount due to a director of FES AR AT —%
the Company EEAIBE 22 357 23
Taxation payable FE{IIRIE 3,393 3,380
Bank borrowing IRATIERR 23 742 =
35,253 36,166
Net current assets RENBEEFE 198,519 220,074
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRSER 238,158 235,944
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
tra MR RR

At 31 December 2021 & —_—F+_F=1+—H

2021 2020
—e—-—& —=-=&
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000
i TR TP

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEas 21 235 77
Bank borrowing IRITER 23 7,027 =
7,262 77
230,896 235,867

Capital and reserves BARRHEE
Share capital &N 24 20,630 20,630
Reserves (=4 210,266 215,237
230,896 235,867

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 171 were 100171 EMGESHMBEREREN S - _F=

R

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 B _+hHBHESEgH AERIE#ET|E > TR T

March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: EEAREE
Mr. Wan Man Keung Mr. Woo Chu Fai
FRBAE R IE
Non-executive Director Executive Director

FHITEF HITEE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n\7r I:I

-||-;‘£-t-

MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE _E_—F+_HA=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAREA AL
Share Share Legal Accumulated
capital premium reserve profits Total
iz RN EE L Zitiafl L
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FHRMT TR TR FHEMT TR
(Note ()
(rste)
At 1 January 2020 AZZZ2F—F—H 464 - 13 150,930 151,407
Loss and total comprehensive
expenses for the year FRBERZERS A5 - - - (20,215) (20,215)
Issue of shares (Note 24) BIRG (Wzto4) 5,158 123,780 - = 128,938
Transaction costs attributable to
issue of new shares BEIMROEGR A = (24,263) = = (24,263)
Capitalisation issue (Notes (i) and 24) B ZALEEAT (W 52(i)%24) 15,008 (15,008) = = =
At 31 December 2020 \ZETEEL+A= + H 20,630 84,509 13 130,715 235,867
Loss and total comprehensive FRBERZEY HRE
expense for the year - - - (4,97) (4,971)
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—H+ZHB=1+—H 20,630 84,509 13 125,744 230,896

Notes:

U

(i)

In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau
Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
(“Macau”), the company registered in Macau is required to transfer part
of its profits of each accounting period of not less than 25% to legal
reserve, until the amount reaches half of its share capital.

The share premium account of the Company was credit as a result
of the Listing (as defined in Note 1). The directors of the Company
were authorised to capitalise an amount of HK$14,550,000 (equivalent
to MOP15,008,000) standing to credit of the share premium of the
Company and applied in paying up in full at par a total of 1,455,000,000
shares for allotment and issue to the shareholders of the Company
(“Capitalisation Issue”).

Mzt -

(i)

RIE(REARENBIRFIFFITHRE (DR &
EELD) BT FORPIEMH AR AR & G5
R A DI ERER26% B EE EHEE > EE A
BT RERERENF AR

KRB ZRMPEERAE LT (EERWET) M
BRISER AR R EFERER AR RN EE
EEE'JEEE§§E14 550,000 7t (tH%51£15,008,000

B BREA - ITRARNEEEMESH
1 ,455,000,000EnyT§} s M E KRBT T ARBRE
(MEAAEEETTY) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
rERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 E —Z —_—F+_HA=+—HItFE

104 SEM Holdings Limited &

2021 2020
—E—F TEITE
MOP’000 MOP’000
T®FTT TBMT
Operating activities REEE
Loss before taxation PRIR RTS8 (4,957) (19,409)
Adjustments for: AU T BIEEHAEE
Depreciation of property, Y~ B R R T E
plant and equipment 2,623 2,047
Gains on early termination of lease contract MESNEARIEZ W ES - (12)
Interest income FEUA (198) (500)
Impairment losses under ECL model, net of ~ FERAE EEIEEN TR ERE
reversal R EEE] 7,713 4,448
Finance costs E={p%N 251 96
Operating cash flows before movements in BE-EFAIKEREMNE
working capital 5,432 (13,330)
Increase in trade and other receivables & W & 53 BR = R ELth FE W s IE 18 10 (8,911) (7,171)
Increase in contract assets/liabilities, net BREE BEFEEN (41,588) (7,858)
Increase (decrease) in trade and FE( & 5 BR AU LA FE (T B
other payables a0 GRizb) 1,703 (17,045)
Cash used in operations KEMBARE (43,364) (45,404)
Income tax paid BENTER (257) (5,882)
Net cash used in operating R EEFRAIRE IR
activities (43,621) (51,286)
Investing activities KREIEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB RE KR E (24,559) (1,358)
Placement of time deposit EERRER (21,720) (6,474)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B IR IFIRITER 17,941 33,053
Interest income received BUF B WA 198 500
Repayment from a related company —EIRAE A BIEMR 4 =
Withdrawal of time deposit IREVEBFER - 7,055
Repayment from a director of the Company ~~ ANAT—REBEEHER - 1,016
Repayment from immediate holding company B A BIE - 586
Advance to a related company ) — R BB A B B - @)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHERIFIRITER - (18,377)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities & E8) (FiH) FRiEIR & 358 (28,136) 15,997




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EE_Z

—t A= IR

2021 2020
B T
MOP’000 MOP’000
T®FTT TBMT
Financing activities A EED
New bank borrowing raised HIBIRITER 8,252 =
Advance from a director of the Company RAB]—HEFER 357 =
Repayments of principal on lease liabilities BEREaGELAE (1,214) (1,322
Repayments of bank borrowing BERITER (483) =
Interest paid BEAHE (145) =
Repayments of interest on lease liabilities BEHREEENE (106) (96)
Repayment to a director of the Company BARAB]—HEEENR (23) (344)
Proceeds from issuance of new shares BTN TS FIE - 128,938
Transaction costs attributable to issue BTN IR 2 A A
of shares - (20,045)
Net cash from financing B EBIFTRIRE R EE
activities 6,638 107,131
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash IRE£RIFELEY GH-) BINHEE
equivalents (65,119) 71,842
Cash and cash equivalents at the FVRERBFEEEEY
beginning of the year 105,394 33,552
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRRERFREEEY
end of the year,
representing bank balances and cash BNIRTT4E R B IR & 40,275 105,394
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r e MBS IR R ML

For the year ended 31 December 2021 E T _—F+_B=1+—HI-FE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions
Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

1. GENERAL INFORMATION —fREN
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted KRB ZE—HF+—A/~HTEHESH
company with limited liability in the Cayman lIslands under ERERESHEATEF2R2EFMMIIK
the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands on 6 BRAERRERAB HERMNK ZZEZ
November 2015 and its shares were listed on The Main Board TFE /AT HBEEEABMERZMAERAR
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock (TRt 22 pry) Mk £l (TE/)) o ARAE R
Exchange”) on 14 February 2020 (the “Listing”). The addresses M EEM AL R F B E =BT IR BN
of the registered office and the principal place of business ERESQBER —H ARATDNEZER
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information NEATERBERHEE (RBRZEHE))
section to the annual report. The immediate holding company s AR IZ B —ZKFA A A BISEM Enterprises
of the Company is SEM Enterprises Limited, which is a private Limited (HARABIEHITEEFRBILERE
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and ) o
controlled by Mr. Wan Man Keung, a non-executive director of
the Company.
The Company acts as an investment holding company and its KAl BREERABDRENB ARG
subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of electrical and FTERBEMREENEBREESHEEMT
mechanical engineering services in Macau and Hong Kong. AR o
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Macau IR e M HRR T LR T (DR IT)) 2%
Pataca (“MOP”), which is also the functional currency of the HINAKRRAB ZINEEE
Company.

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO FERKE]I R BUBIIREER

(12 B R A )

RS SR G E MR EIEST B B Bk
=g Ll

REFE RRESYFTREEF 7EEBE
EXREAN_Z_—F—FB—BxZEH
BHFEERE R ENNEBGSMAE

(TEBGSERAE)) BHEHOUTRETE
B BHREER]

SRR EEDFE165 ECOVID-19F
(BET =) Rz HBEE
SAVEREELFE . FIEEENY
ERGTAERE3SE - EE—F _H
B R ELERFETIR
SRR EER)F458
REARBRESENSF
1658 (BT 2)

REFEERAZSEETEBUMBREE
ANAERRTFERBEFEZMBR
RRERKR/ RZEREHBREREH
KRELTESEATEZ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments®

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.

2.

B MBI R EXBI T RAEIESTE R
MRS ER

A& B iH AR 1R F B AR E M B H R EMB
TIRE] REMER] BB B RE 2R

EEMBRSENS7H

BEMBRSER BN
CEEN)

BERMBREERF109R

REREARARET
B ER R

REEEHBENTY

BB Y ERH285E BEPEBNE
(CHES) EHERFE
EREHREEASE16% —E_—FA=1H

(B3] =) 2B 8Covid-198
ZHSER
ERGHENEIR (B5]x) el EARSAER
B REBREER
(CE_ZF) A
GIEHE

EREHEREINREBY SEERKE
BREZREBRE 20

ffEST
EBGHERFeT (BT SatHANER
BB ERH125% RE-—QGELNEE
CHEN) K& AR
g
BRGERS165 UEN Y S
(E5T4) REBBABRE
IR
BB G5 ERB375% BREN-BITENZ
CEEN) PR
EAMBREED (BT “T-N\FE"Z"F
FEBMBREE
RIZ FEOE

T RZE_-—FNB-HAZERENEE
HARER

2 RE__F-B-—HAZERHBNEE
HARER

¢ RIE_=F-FB-HAZERHBNEE
HARER

f RRETEERSZ ERBHEERABREN-

KRB ERTE EAWI REESTE B
BHREZRINRARREAIGHRIESHHR
REEMEATE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if the market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment’, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “/mpairment of Assets”.

3. FEFETHR

HEVBRRERETEGSAMAEHRR
MNEBYFRELNGER - RRE S/
BREMS  HWARENGERAELEE
ERARFHRRE MAREHNKGERE
Rollbsh iR EM B RR OB IESF L
mRA (TEHRR) REBABEGIPAR
ERERMEE -

4

n

R E SRR D R S A AN A AR B o FE SE AY
A—RERBRXBEmERBHNERN
AFEFHE

AFERTHE2RERFEBRAEFRS
PHEBEEWIHBEEREAINNE
1% M BRES AR HEMEERN
ERfERNGE -REABEENER/LT
B AEBZREHHE2EENRGTERRY
EENEREERMEBNEENERSE
o ZEROVBRERPEAER HKE
AR RATEDRIEEEEE U TSR
BRON : BN EBMBREERB2RLURY
BEBZ N BEIRURN BARERZ
R REEBYBREEE165HE]
ANRNEER S URHFGEHAFEZ
EFEETHRUZREBLIFATE AINE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 and 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted price (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset and liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary (see Note 34) is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a services of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continuea)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue from electrical and mechanical engineering services
is described in the accounting policy on construction contracts
below.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sRE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continuea)

Revenue from electrical and mechanical engineering services
is recognised over time during the course of construction by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction at the
end of the reporting period. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the
Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation (i.e. contract costs incurred for work performed to
date) relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation (i.e. total estimated contract costs),
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control

of goods or services.

For construction contracts that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payment, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely amount, which
better predicts the amount of consideration contract only to
the extent that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the

changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

The contract assets on construction contracts represent the
Group’s right to consideration for work completed and not billed
as the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance
in satisfying the respective performance obligations. The
contract liabilities on construction contracts represent the
Group’s obligation to transfer electrical and mechanical
engineering services to customers for which the Group has
received consideration from the customers. A contract asset and
a contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted for

and presented on a net basis.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —_E_—F+_F=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continuead)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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sRE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continueqd)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
when the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the maodification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

3.

FTEGHHER @

HE @

TEEEREBA @

HEER (&)

HEHE BN TEREEEEZFEE
g AEBEMEHECE UMBRAR
RAEEEFRERERE) > FILIBR T 68
HESANEMTEABAUEETTRREE
TREESTHERIRMEMtE -

HEEX

MRBRTE U TG ZERREEEN
ER—RERHEEETESRE !

s RENBBEMHN-—ENZREME
ENERARBEARERSE ; &

s HEEARBHEMNERAHKWEAEE
HENEBEERERARREEGEN
REBIAMYZBBHERFLNEM
BEERHEEME-

HRAES—EEBEEETISFREYN
HEEN FHEEANENE  ZEBR
BEMBREENHEEH BB ERENERN
TIRERENRVEE I RBETINEU
EMstEBHEAR-

rEBRBBHAREREEEETHESR
B-HHERREMAEETETRE B
EBRENGNESHEEMIS DN —E R
ZEAEMBENIFEEAME DR AEH
CRFEEEMENI DB IBILERE KIF
HEARBINEBLBRERFERNERNS
NP HESEEESEBREHEME D -

Annual Report Z£E#R & 2021 117



118

SEM Holdings Limited JB:Z1ZZ B R A E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any).

The recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belong.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continuead)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-generating
units, with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Expected credit losses

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets and other items which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables,
contract assets, deposits, other receivables, amount due from a
related company, pledged bank deposits, time deposit and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)
Expected credit losses (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. For all other financial instruments, the
Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)
Expected credit losses (Continued)

U)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)
Expected credit losses (Continued)

U)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has
a low risk of default; (i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and (jiij) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

3. FEFTHE @

£RMTHE®

ETMEE @
HHIIEER1R ()

U)

(i)

EERRABIEM @

BER L HEFTEREBESR
REBHAARBEERR A AEE
BREHLANGEERRBY D BT
DUBR A 458 AR AE A0 e (IR L T B3 2
ARG TANEEARARMBEER
R BRBREQRR ()& 77 ERH
BB IR EHRABRTEGNRER
BB KB REFHRRTHRAT
F P REBERL GHISERTET
HENRSREBEERRE] HEH T
BRRE IR E BT R IRE R
(REERBERER) AAEERR
ZEBLAGFERBEERR

FEBERERRENARIEUEE
REFAEGEERRBEEMIL N HE
ITIER I RIRZESENE SRR
A1 BRI E S B AR EER -

BONER

MAEEERBREEMS » fH A 2R
FAESBRBRERHNE R BEREHTA
FARAEDHERA (BEELAER) 2
BER RIEEBERSEEENSEFo

i EXF > AEERR HERE
EBAABE0H » BB EENEM IR
FEREEAERPERRNENRE
EReBENGENEER BIFRR-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)
Expected credit losses (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice when
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Expected credit losses (Continued)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, the loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments that are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instruments.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amount due to a director of the Company and bank
borrowing are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investment in a subsidiary, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investment are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in term of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, as recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the
“MPF Schemes”) in Hong Kong and the Social Security
Fund Contribution in Macau are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages, salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.

Electrical and mechanical engineering services
contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimated total contract
costs and margins to complete the satisfaction of these services
and the margin of each project as the contract progresses.
Budgeted costs and margins are prepared by management of
the Group on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the subcontractors or suppliers involved and the experience
of management of the Group. In order to keep the budget
accurate and up-to-date, management of the Group conducts
periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred. Such
significant estimate may have impact on the margins recognised
in each period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continueq)

Electrical and mechanical engineering services
contracts (Continuea)

For construction contracts that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payment, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely amount, which
better predicts the amount of consideration contract only to
the extent that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

Recognised amounts of revenue of MOP182,176,000 (2020:
MOP70,239,000) from electrical and mechanical engineering
services contracts reflect the management’s best estimate of
each contract’s outcome and stage of completion, which are
determined on the basis of a number of estimates. This includes
the assessment of the margins of on-going electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts. For more complex
contracts in particular, costs to complete and margins are
subject to significant estimation uncertainty, the actual outcomes
in terms of total cost may be higher or lower than estimated at
the end of each reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and margins recognised in future years and adjustment to the
amounts recorded to date.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continueq)

Recognition of ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets have been assessed
individually. The Group applies internal credit rating for its
customers. The amounts are assessed individually by reference
to historical credit loss experience, aging analysis, repayment
history and/or current past due status of the debtor. ECL
estimates also consider the reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. At every reporting date, the potential increase in credit
risk, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.
The ECL recognition has considered the risk surrounding the
Covid-19 pandemic and is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL of the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in Note 28.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2021, a deferred tax asset of HK$336,000
(equivalent to approximately MOP347,000) (2020: nil) in relation
to unused tax losses for an operating subsidiary in Hong Kong
has been recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position. No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax
losses for non-operating subsidiaries due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future, which is a
key source of estimation uncertainty especially the uncertainty
on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve. In
cases where the actual future taxable profits generated are less
or more than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a
material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

4.

st REARERIZ N EE KR @

HBREWEZRMKRENEENTERE
=15t

EHEREZIRARENEEETER T
e AEEAREETFERRABEET K2
L2 EBRAECEFREER KRBT B
iR A REHS AN E R A AR R T
BB 5F(E - FEHAE BB st N E B S 2
FRBBEENNERALE HEN 0] ES
BIRTREMEEN N EHRE HH > T EHTME
EERER IR BEHEENENER
= ERIEEENES) - HAEHEERE
B & ECovid-19A 1T 18 R8BS K K = (i 51
HEHEENEE -ERANEEEREZ RN
RENEEZEHEERBENENFER
MizE28 °

BIETRIAE &

R_E_—F+_A=+—H NiEal
BRARM—BENEBEEWBELATNER
B R TE S 18 R SRR AEFR TE & EE336,00078
7t T E4347,0008F9 ) (ZE = .
) o A SR AR E A AR S Bl TR 0 (A IE I
EMIEEE B R NRIBEERERRIL
MEBEEE-RIEREEERESUERFTERN
RRAKREE B BRKGHRERRNEG
BEERERIEBI A 0 LA et A FEE RV RE 3R
BB > 45 B 2 Covid-19%& 15 B AE W A1 3 B &
RN AT WA BERES 2 RS
Miah LRSS RER BB RERAE
B R R FE SR IR m A 5T (E 85T » Bl
FEGSIBIEIEMRIBE E 2 EARE I E—
TR WAL E— T HERELE
HBREI R 4B 2 R RR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continueq)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the assets belong, including allocation
of corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable amount
is determined at the smallest group of cash generating units,
for which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts. Furthermore, the cash
flows projections, growth rate and discount rate are subject to
greater uncertainties due to uncertainty on how the Covid-19
pandemic may progress and evolve.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) subject
to impairment assessment were MOP1,724,000 (2020:
MOP15,822,000), after taking into account the impairment
losses of nil (2020: nil).
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5. REVENUE 5. Wz
2021 2020
T —fF T TEF
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEMTT TEPIT
Provision of electrical and mechanical IR E ) R T2 ARTS
engineering services recognised over time 48 B 5 e 57 182,176 70,239
The customers of the Group are mainly main contractors and FERNERTEABRPOREBNEKE
subcontractors in Macau and Hong Kong. Contracts with the BRDEE - HAEERFNENEEAE
Group’s customers are mainly fixed-price contracts, except for EEMINEL tETRE BRI o
the variation orders.
Disaggregation of revenue Yz 48
2021 2020
—E—% 22
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEFMTT TEFMT
By property type Y EERE 5D
Hotels and casinos JEE S YR 8415 29,550 65,615
Residential properties FEYE 10,542 1,007
Commercial properties EEXYES 66,259 1,391
Public properties N~/ ES 74,908 -
Others HAth 917 2,226
182,176 70,239
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. PEER
The Group is engaged in a single operating segment focusing on AEBNEBEE—KZSDE FAENIRMEE
the provision of electrical and mechanical engineering services. TS TR ARTS - A E D WIHIRIBEALE
This operating segment has been identified on the basis of BRERTE ZREHARAES AIEE
internal management reports that are regularly reviewed by the EIERRE) THER  UEEEIERE
directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision R Eo- AL FEEFH I BERNE—
makers, for the purpose of result allocation and performance A/ TR

assessment. Therefore, no further analysis of segment
information is presented.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EE_Z

—t A= IR

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuec)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Macau and Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and information
about its non-current assets by geographical location of the
customers and the assets, respectively, are detailed below:

DEEE @

HEHE

7 2 [ O AR K (R SR P R S 58 o
AEBFEIBEENRALURERR R

AEMEMLBEDNERBEELN 2 #
BRI T :

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIMBERBIWA JEREBEE
Year ended 31 December At 31 December
HE+_B=1+—HIEE R+ZB=+—H
2021 2020 2021 2020
& TETEE etk 3 TECRE
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FEMT TR T FBMT FEFT
Macau P 103,912 70,239 37,584 15,238
Hong Kong e 78,264 = 1,799 637
182,176 70,239 39,383 15,870
Note: ~ Non-current assets excluded deferred tax asset. Kzt FERBBEETCERERESE-
Information about major customers ERAFERERNER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total REMGAEELNHI0ONU ENEERE
revenue of the Group during the year are as follows: AW
2021 2020
T % =
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR
Customer A ERA 126,507 45,578
Customer B =FB 37,953 N/A 7~
*  The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the * RAEREMEEER  HE WG B AEE KR

total revenue of the Group during the relevant financial year.

HEZER B BAR T E S 0% ©
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7. OTHER INCOME 7. HfthlkA
2021 2020
—B_ 5 “E2TEF
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEMTT TEFIT
Interest income A EWA 198 500
Government grants BT #RE - 763
Others HAth 629 12
827 1,275
During the prior year, the Group recognised government grants R EFE AEBERLCovid-1948 A #H EH ESD
of MOP763,000 in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies, of B % Al 763,00002 PI 7t » E 613,000 P9
which MOP613,000 related to Employment Support Scheme A AR IRENARMESTBEERIE
provided by the Hong Kong government and MOP150,000 of 52150,000/2 F9 7575 B FI BT He (B9 — R 1%
one-off epidemic prevention subsidy provided by the Macau BB A o
government.
8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER ECL 8. TEHAEER BRI TRYRER
MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL 18 > N pR#EE[E]
2021 2020
T —fF =g 5
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEFITT TEFT
Impairment losses, net of reversal, TR IEER R ER S
recognised on: OpxR#EEE]
— trade receivables (Note 15) —EWE Z RN (a2 15) 1,698 830
- contract assets (Note 17) —aNEE Wat17) 6,015 3,618

7,713 4,448
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9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. MR#RAFIE1E
2021 2020
T % =
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FEMT
Loss before taxation has been PRI AIESIE BT H0BR
arrived at after charging: THBIBEBER
Directors’ remuneration EiE 2,866 3,200
Other staff costs HME T K
— salaries and other allowance — ¥ R HAERL 14,382 8,306
— retirement benefit scheme contributions ~ —RAREF 512l 7k 398 150
Total staff costs BT AR 17,646 11,656
Less: staff costs included in cost of services & : 5t ABRFS A<M & Tk (7,666) (1,747)
9,980 9,909
Auditors’ remuneration Z BN & 980 1,258
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -BEREBITE
equipment 2,623 2,047
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. EE - FEITHAERESME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERFETHASME
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors RFEEA MR REER BRI
and chief executive of the Company disclosed pursuant to WEARBAEERFETHRAEBEN
the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies HEMBNEEBEOT -

Ordinance, are as follows:

Performance Retirement

Salaries related benefit
and other incentive scheme
Fees allowance payments  contributions Total
HER SRR RAER
nE Hiti2Rh HYSEED S 13 B EE k]
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FiRMT FiAMT FiRMT FEMT FiAMT
(Note i)
(Hativ)
Year ended HEZZ--&%
31 December 2021 +ZA=+—HLEEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Note j R (H5) - 798 - 19 817
Mr. Wun Chi Wai FERRE - 554 - 19 573
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan ASELRE - 527 - 19 546
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRBEE 186 - - - 186
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis BAEREA 186 - - - 186
Independlent non-executive BUFHITEE
directors
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer BIIRE R (i)
(Note i) 186 - - - 186
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, B8S 3L fh &+ 58S
(Note i) (i) 186 - - - 186
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas WAL (I
(Note i) 186 - - - 186

Total emoluments ME4EE8 930 1,879 - 57 2,866




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. E5 - FTETHAERESME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (4
(a) Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments (a) EFERFETHAEME @
(Continued)
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit
and other incentive scheme
Fees allowance payments  contributions Total
HER BRI RER
nE HithZh: HYSEED S {3 HEGEN b
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMT FRMT FiRMT FRMT FiRMT
(Note iv)
(i)
Year ended HE-ZT-ZH
31 December 2020 +ZA=+—HLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Note ) I (Hfzt) - 728 516 19 1,263
Mr. Wun Chi Wai SELE - 529 - 19 548
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan ASELE - 555 - 19 574
Non-executive directors FHHTEE
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRAKE 163 - - - 163
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis BAZRRA 163 - - - 163
Indiependent non-executive BUHRTEE
directors
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer BIRE L (i)
(Note i) 163 - - - 163
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, B8S 3L fh %+ 58S
(Note i) (i) 163 = = = 163
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas ¥R E (Hatii)
(Note i) 163 - - - 163
Total emoluments &4ezE 815 1,812 516 57 3,200

Notes: Kzt -

)  Mr. Woo Chu Fai acts as the chief executive of the Company () PREEBEREEETEAARFETEHAS
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for BEHENMEEREEAEET
services rendered by him as the chief executive. B A BPTiRHARFSHIBNE o

(i)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were i) UERTEEMEDMBEEEELR
for their services in connection with the management of the B ;e AN & B = 75 P iR 1 B9 AR 75 m 1
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive Hold EIERITEEMETI IR EH
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services EERARBRENB AR ZESIEM
as directors of the Company and its subsidiaries. HIARFEMAE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) #
(a) Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments (a)
(Continued)

(b)

(i) On 22 January 2020, Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer, Dr. Sham
Chung Ping Alain, BBS and Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas
were appointed as independent non-executive directors of
the Company. Their emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

(iv)  The performance related incentive payments are determined
based on the performance of the individual and the Group’s
performance and profitability.

Employees’ emoluments (b)

The five highest paid individuals include three (2020: two)
directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021, details of whose emoluments are included above.
Details of the emoluments of the remaining highest paid
individuals were as follows:

10. EE-FTETHABREESME

EERFETBRAEME @

iy RZZTZZEFE—HBZ+_H 2R=E
S TL TS 4 - BBSR BRI E
BETARABBILIFERITESE U
THREZHEREEREERATE
ERTRENRFBEMIEL

(v) BRENAEMBEBS I REBEEAKR
RRAEBMRIR B ENETE

EEM=
RBEE_ZE-_—+-A=+—HL
FE - IAmeFMATEE=S
TRF MR AABDES REM
THBRN EX R TREHMALH
MiEsF BT

2021 2020
—s-—F —=-=%

MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TEMT

Employees =1
— salaries and other allowance —#re R EMERL 1,144 1,303
— performance related incentive payments — £ 45 34 A8 B8l B9 52 Bh = < - 634
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —3BR4E K 5t &3k 36 54

1,180 1,991




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. EF - FETHAEBREEME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continueq) #
(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEME @
The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were within FitESNMERN U TEER :

the following bands:

2021 2020
—E—F TEITE
Number of Number of
employees employees
BE A BE A&
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000 7T 2 3
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of AEBHMEARARBDEETRALERS
the Company nor the five highest paid individuals (including AT (BREERES) HEM
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon MEERMAREBR K IMARBIE
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. B EABEREE MERAQTDESEN
None of the directors of the Company waived or agreed to A8 E T Sk B R E A = o
waive any emoluments during both years.
11. TAXATION 11. IR18
2021 2020
—g-—F TERITE
MOP’000 MOP’000
T®FITT TEPITT
Macau Complementary Tax BRI TR
Current tax BPRRFR IR 1,340 1,106
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBREE (1,070) (300)
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFEFR
Deferred taxation (Note 16) IRIEFRIE (H15E16) (256) =
14 806
Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2020: 12%) of RER BT 7RI 8 E600,00008 P 7T
the estimated assessable profits exceeding MOP600,000 for the AT ERREFN12% (ZE_SF .
year. 12%) 5t & ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sRE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

11.

TAXATION (Continued)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
assessable profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the
qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
subsidiary in Hong Kong does not have any assessable profits
for both years.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

11. R @

REEBMNERZMEFFESREEE 5
EREEBRNE28 BB T T EEM R
#8.26%M MR MBBE2E BB TH
BISHEE ) R IR16. 5% IRRH IR - A5
WARBIFGIR G EERNERBERT
ST g 7 A 4 48 921 6.5% AV B — TR AR
He-EIt cEREEEBERNE2EEET
st FERIN AT 128.26% M B B2 H B A T
E st FERIEF BIIZ16.5%H MK ENE
BRER

R & BN B A S5 M8 E E I EEAER
KUEH] AL RN BB AR IR o

EReREREMEERE R P ERNR
TREFRIR AR IERV AR T ¢

2021 2020
B F S
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFTT TBMT
Loss before taxation FRIRATES 18 (4,957) (19,409)
Tax at Macau Complementary Tax rate RPN E12% 5 E
of 12% (2020: 12%) MR (CZ2EF 1 12%) (595) (2,329)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AEHNRASZNR T E
tax purpose 1,688 3,596
Tax effect of income not taxable for EEFERWANRBEE
tax purpose 2) (89)
Special complementary tax incentive SR IREE (72) (72)
Overprovision in prior years BEFFEBREG (1,070) (300)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBA R & A = B S
operating in other jurisdiction NEINREREN L 55 -
Others HAth 10 =
Taxation for the year FRIRIE 14 806




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —_E_—F+_F=+—HILFE

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting

12.

e
REE-F-—F+-A=t+—HLEE
i 64 A F) BB SR AR IR
4R 5 MR LUK R E R SR (T (E (AR

period (2020: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the

following data:

—ECoSE o
13. ERE1E

BRERBEERUTEIESE !

2021 2020
B —F —EIEHF
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFTT TR
Loss K548
Loss for the year FREE (4,971) (20,215)
2021 2020
—E_—F TECRF
Number of Number of
shares shares
e E & E
’000 ’000
Th& Th
Weighted average number of shares B&AR MNHETEI9E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares i 3& j& il F 192 2,000,000 1,939,891

The weighted average number of shares for the purpose of
calculating basis loss per share has been determined on the
assumption that the Capitalisation Issue which took place during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (details as disclosed in Note
24) had been effective on 1 January 2020.

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the prior year did not
assume the exercise of the over-allotment option granted upon
the Listing since the exercise of the option would not result in an
increase in loss per share. The over-allotment option lapsed after
the Listing.

No diluted loss per share for both years are presented as there
are no potential ordinary shares in issue during both years.

B EERERBRNRN MEFHIH

ERBRREE_ T T+ _A=+—
HiIEEERNBEENERLET GHBERMTE
24IWEE) EM B _EF—HA—HENME
n:_o

tEEESRBEERENFABETERRITE
P EmRAARHBBREERE  BRTEZ
RETEENSREIRIEN - BEKE
R Em®RR

wEZ7MEFENSREEHEE RAam

BEERNTEETEETERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —_F_—F+_F=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME - -BERZE
Owned Leased Leasehold Furniture Motor
property properties improvements and fixtures  Equipment vehicles Total
BENE HENE HENERE GRREE R HE g

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TEAT  TEfz  FEAR TRz TEMm FEAR TEMR

COST 72
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-Z5-F—H 14,005 6,532 435 120 749 320 22,161
Additions HE - 1,101 774 - 584 - 2,459
Early termination of HEaARAEL

lease contracts - (a) - - - - (47)
At 31 December 2020 :gigﬁ

+ZR=1+— 14,005 7,162 1,209 120 1,333 320 24,149

Additions e 19,567 1,506 4,022 - 970 - 26,065
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—4+°F=1+-H 33,572 8,668 5,231 120 2,303 320 50,214
DEPRECIATION i
At 1 January 2020 R_ZE_EE-F—H 373 5,186 146 17 546 128 6,496
Provided for the year FREE 280 1,328 253 2 119 65 2,047
Early termination of REAHRAEILE

lease contracts - (216) - - - - (216)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZF+-A=1—H 653 6,298 399 119 665 193 8,327
Provided for the year EREE 574 1,214 474 1 297 63 2,623
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZA=1—H 1,227 7,512 873 120 962 256 10,950
CARRYING VALUES Eﬁﬁfﬁ
At 31 December 2021 “Z_—%+"R=1-H 32,345 1,156 4,358 - 1,341 64 39,264

At 31 December 2020 “E_REF"RA=1-H 18,352 864 810 1 668 127 16,822




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e M ISR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. V¥ -BERSZE @

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Owned property 2%

Leased properties The shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term

The shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The Group has pledged the owned property with carrying
amount of MOP17,398,000 (2020: nil) to secure the bank
borrowing (see Note 23) granted to the Group.

The Group as a lessee

Right-of-use assets (included in the leased properties in the
property, plant and equipment)

FtME -BERRFENRBERBERER
BURERFE !

BEYE 2%

FREYE REstHEASZHNEES
HME PN EE

HEYELEE BRiLsHERSZHMES
B E PR E

RMREE 20%

Bl 20%

RE 20%

AEEERPEREE/17,398,00008F3 7T
(CE_=F B mEANENERAE
EEFEEHRITER (RMEE23)

TEBEA—REABEA
ﬁ?ﬁ&éﬁﬁi(ﬁrk%% i 55 Fe % 1 TR B9 AR

2021 2020
B —F —ETEH
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMT TP

Expense relating to short-term leases with
lease terms end within 12 months
Total cash outflow for leases

For both years, the Group leases various offices, staff quarters
and warehouses for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed terms of 1 to 2 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
properties. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the portfolio of
short-term lease is similar to the portfolio of short-term lease to
which the short-term lease expense disclosed as above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, carrying amounts of lease liabilities of
MOP1,130,000 are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of MOP1,156,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: lease
liabilities of MOP838,000 and related right-of-use assets of
MOP864,000). The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

BFAHBRN 1218 B R4S R A9
DHRTH E A RE Eﬁﬁ;ﬂfi 394 373
%HEEE%/)ILﬁNu

1,714 1,791

RmEEE 2EERHEERESEMA
E-BIBEEKAE- %H‘EA?’J ST 1E2%F
BY B E HA PR o A HA TS B B! B B2 L1775 0 b
BB BARBRRARMT o R EEE AR
MG APl s S AR R HAIR S - AEERAB S
#IBYTE F 0 7 RE P) SR BT S AIRIEAR o

FERERTUERYERE- R _T " —
ER-_ZEZF+_HF=+—H EHEE
#B & B PRI BE RO A2 HATE B B S2 Y AE HA
HEHASHE

B B A RRIPRHIZ 24T

s> B2 _—F+_H=+—08>
1,180,000t EEERE EEME
2 MHNEREESEA1,156,00008F9 7
—E_ZTHF HESEA838,00002 7T
B ERE 055 I HE 5 = %3864,00078 P7T) o B%
R HOTE B 2 T D R AR AR LS -
HEHE T ERNEAZL - BAEEELRA
ThERERAIEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sRE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —_F_—F+_F=+—HILFE

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15. FEUL E 5 BR =X

2021 2020
—EB_ 5 R
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FEFT
Trade receivables FEUR & 5 BR =X 54,648 44,769
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (3,013) (1,315)
51,635 43,454
Deposits and prepayments ¥e& R FEIFIE 2,011 3,179
Deposit for a construction contract BERSNERE - 535
Other receivables HhEWRIE 1,335 600
54,981 47,768

Presented as: EXP=
Non-current JERED 119 48
Current TREN 54,862 47,720
54,981 47,768

At 1 January 2020, trade receivables amounted to
MOP39,823,000.

At 31 December 2021, trade receivables amounted to
MOP51,635,000 (2020: MOP43,454,000) (net of loss allowance
of MOP3,013,000 (2020: MOP1,315,000)). The Group usually
allows a credit period of 30 to 60 days to its customers.
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses based on the invoice dates at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

KRBT E-—RA—B BUREZERS
39,823,000/ P 7T °

N_E_—F+ZB=+—H EBWKE
SR A51,635,000 89T (ZE =
£ 1 43,454,000)82F97c) (JOBRES B H IR
3,013,000t (ZZ " F 4 : 1,315,000;2
Fi70)) - AEEREZ A% H A RI30H E60
HREEH NEREHF }Euﬁz%%ﬁ%’x
(NREE/mIEEE) RE DI
BAZ5UNF -

2021 2020

—E—fF BT

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR TR

Within 30 days 30H™A 18,365 22,711
31 to 60 days 31&E60H 8,733 489
61 to 90 days 61E90H 16 3,593
Over 90 days B1E0H 24,521 16,661

51,635 43,454




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EE

——

—

—t A= IR

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continueq)

Included in the trade receivables are debtors with a carrying
amount of MOP33,270,000 (2020: MOP20,743,000) at 31
December 2021, which are past due. Out of the past due
balances, MOP24,518,000 (2020: MOP16,619,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
at 31 December 2021 by considering the continuous business
relationship and historical repayments from these customers.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances or
charge any interest thereon.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECL on
all trade receivables and contract assets. Trade receivables and
contract assets have been assessed for ECL individually.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
customers from the date credit was initially granted up to
the end of the reporting period. The majority of the Group’s
trade receivables that are past due but not impaired are from
customers with good credit quality with reference to respective
settlement history and forward-looking information and the
Group considers any change in the expected life of the trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period.

Details of impairment assessment on trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits are set out in Note 28.

15. FEUR & 5 BR AR e H {th FE U 7R IH

(#)

ATEBEC—F+HA=+—H REKB5E
B B R HA Y AR 8 433,270,000 F9 7
(Z2 =4 20,743,000 F9 75) BIFEUR
TIF o P HBAS R0 0 24,518,000)82FF 75 (=
T T4 16,619,0002FF7T) B BHIOOK
FUERERINEAZERT L NIFEETSR
FERZETENBATFER N2 _—F
+ B =+—HAWREEN - AEE N HE
MZEERTE T AKR R FIEWERD
EEFS o

AEBRRBBIEHEMTABIE SRR
REMEES RBMEERE -BKESKK
MREHNEECHEREEBERERT G

REZEARERZA AEE ST LB
ERNEEERIBERERIVEEMRE R
HEERWEZRAOTREIER  AEEE
TREPHNEEEZRBEEERVREAH
EERRSHARNEAES - AEBAAE
RBRENEKREZERARALOKREBEEE
ERFNER U2 EXENEEEL KA
EMHER BAREENSREAREBEY
BZRMBTRAF Y -

BRAEWE Z iR HEWRIERZER
B s BB M sE28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sRE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE . ——F+_HA=1+—HILFE

16. DEFERRED TAXATION

6. IRIEMIIA

At 31 December

“+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—E_—fF —EIEF
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEFTT TEFT
Deterred tax assets RERIEE E 256 =

The following is the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and morements thereon during the current year:

UTFARAEENREDNTIZRIERBEEE
(BB RHEHEZF:

Accelerated tax Unutilised
depreciation  ECL provision tax loss Total
BHEE REAH
IERETE BRERE RIEHE st
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FEMT 2T TR TR
At 1 January 2020, F_g_vi R—H>
31 December 2020 and “Z°% fﬁ" B=+—H
1 January 2021 h_E_—&5—HF—H - - - _
(Charged) credit to profit or loss 718z (1BR) 5t A (95) 4 347 256
At 31 December 2021 “E—H4+ZRA=+—H (95) 4 347 256

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$3,060,000 (equivalent to
approximately MOP3,156,000) (2020: nil) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised

in respect of tax losses

of approximately HK$3,060,000

(equivalent to approximately MOP3,156,000) (2020: nil) of such
losses. The losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

REREHAAR > AEE IR R EF B
RENAMIBEEE43,060,0008 7T Fready
3,156,000}2F ) (T2 4 . &) - Ext
ZE PR IER1E493,060,00058 7T G
:.,\73156 0002F7m) (ZEEZZF | |)
IRIETRIEE E o B8 n] SRR AR A 8 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 EE_Z

—t A= IR

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

17. SNEERGHNER

LIABILITIES
2021 2020
T —fF =g 5
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T BT
Contract assets from provision of RERMHEETRRREN
electrical and mechanical engineering BHEE
services
— Unbilled revenue —RHAZWA 94,040 51,516
— Retention money —1®xEE 24,677 29,452
118,717 80,968
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EERERE (9,769) (3,754)
108,948 77,214
Contract liabilities sEHEaRE
Provision of electrical and mechanical RHE I R T2 RS
engineering services 773 4,612

At 1 January 2020, contract assets and contract liabilities
amounted to MOP68,425,000 and MOP63,000 respectively.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditional on quantity surveyors’ or customers’
inspection. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets recognised are as follows:

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period with
reference to surveys of work performed to date. The Group
typically transfers the contract assets to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

A _ETEFE—RA—H aHBEEKRGH
B 1E45 5l 468,425,000 P9 7t K 63,00052 F9
7750

BRNEETEZRAEEMBEIMERK
M TR ERNEN B R EAEEE
MPBUTHAEMNZLRNERDEF -5
NEERBIRABRERERBKES

BRRR

FEERISNEETEN I EMRIER
mr:

FEENBRRESHNBEEESELZS RN
ETHIRERAENBRRPBRRERMNMR
BIRRET 8 - BRI A IR > A& H
BERGNEEBRERKEZ RN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE

—m—

—

—t A= IR

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

The Group also typically agrees to a defect liability period of 1
year from the date of the practical completion of the construction
for 5% to 10% of the contract sum. This amount of retention
money is included in contract assets until the end of the defect
liability period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment
is conditional on completion of defect liability period. The defect
liability period serves as an assurance that the construction
services performed comply with agreed-upon specifications and
such assurance cannot be purchased separately. The Group
classifies these contract assets as current because the Group
expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.

Retention money is unsecured, interest-free and recoverable at
the end of the defect liability period of 1 year from the date of the
completion of respective projects.

The amount of receipt in advance from a customer is netted
off against retention money on a particular contract basis and
presented as contract liabilities. For the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period, MOP4,612,000 (2020:
MOP61,000) recognised as revenue in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The increase of contract assets as at 31 December 2021 is
the result of the increase in completion of certain significant
contracts work of electrical and mechanical engineering
services.

The increase of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021 is
the result of receipt in advance from the customers from certain
projects.

Details of impairment assessment on contract assets are set out
in Note 28.
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18.

19.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED
COMPANY

At 31 December 2020, the amount due from a related company
of MOP4,000 represented certain expenses paid on behalf of
REM Group (Holdings) Limited, a company also controlled by
Mr. Wan Man Keung, a non-executive director of the Company.
The maximum amount outstanding during the current and prior
years was MOP4,000 and the amount was non-trade nature,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Details of impairment assessment on amount due from a related
company are set out in Note 28.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/TIME
DEPOSIT/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2021 are pledged
to secure the performance bonds (see Note 30) granted to the
Group, which carry interest at prevailing market rate of 1.00%
(2020: ranged from 0.10% to 1.65%) per annum.

Time deposit represents a bank deposit with original maturity
date of over three months and the balance as at 31 December
2021 carried a fixed interest rate ranging from 0.03% to 0.65%
(2020: 0.40%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, bank balances and cash comprise of
cash held and short term bank deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less which carry interest at prevailing market
rate of 0.001% (2020: ranged from 0.25% to 0.33%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment on pledged bank deposits,
time deposit and bank balances are set out in Note 28.

18.

19.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. FR{1 B S IR R Hth & 45k
2021 2020
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFTT TBMT
Trade payables FETE R 20,539 21,605
Retention payables BN FREE 5,353 3,603
Accrued expenses FEstRE 3,126 2,069
Other payables Hih g =IE 75 113
29,093 27,390
At 31 December 2021, trade payables amounted to N2 _—F+_B=+—H ERHES
MOP20,539,000 (2020: MOP21,605,000). The credit period of BRI %420,539,000RF 75 (S - T4 ¢
trade payables is ranging from 30 to 90 days. The following is an 21,605,000:2F37T) - BB ZERAMNEE
aging analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice date at HANFI0EN0H - NERESHF  ENES
the end of the reporting period: IRFEARE D MH IR ZHEAZ AW T ¢
2021 2020
—E-—%F —ETEF
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T TEFT
Within 30 days 30HA 13,796 9,822
31 to 60 days 31Z260H 2,879 91
61 to 90 days 61290H 512 -
Over 90 days HB4B90H 3,352 11,692
20,539 21,605
Included in the Group’s trade payables is a related company REBNENEZEROE—TEHEEAR
with carrying amount of MOP4,000 (2020: nil) due to Shun Tat FEMEZEKERBRRAR (TEZ)) B
M&E Equipment Limited (“‘Shun Tat”), of which Mr. Wan Man BEHREEA4,0008M T (T2 F
Keung, a non-executive director of the Company, has significant ) HAARBERNTEEFRAALES

influence over this company. ZNBBEARFTE
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21. LEASE LIABILITIES 21. fHE&E
2021 2020
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FBEMT
Lease liabilities payable: FETREEE !
Within one year R—FR 895 761
Within a period of more than one year R—F U EEREEmERN
but not more than two years FARA 235 77
1,130 838
Less: Amount due for settlement with B A ERSEREZR 2@
12 months shown under current BREIEREE 2 708
liabilities (895) (761)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months §'J1’F3F/;|L§7J%T$ZEA+ (EVE]
under non-current liabilities BRIFREHE 2 08 235 77

22. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR OF THE 22, B AT—HESHIA
COMPANY

2021 2020

—F-—% BT

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR TIPS

Mr. Woo Chu Fai B ST 357 23
The amount is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and ZPTIEAIEE S HE  BIEF R E RBR

repayable on demand. EREERo
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23. BANK BORROWING 23. $R1TE
2021 2020
—E- 4 TETEE
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T TEPIT
Secured bank borrowing BIRRIRITER 7,769 =
The carrying amount of the above borrowing is _E #iLf& =R AV ER E &
repayable (based on scheduled repayment (RIEEER M EPTEETE
dates set out in the loan agreement): EXHER)
Within one year —FRN 742 -
Within a period of more than one year but not BB —EEB R BBEME
exceeding two years 763 -
Within a period of more than two years but not BiE M E(EF BB A E
exceeding five years 2,413 -
Within a period of more than five years 848 3,851 =
7,769 -
Less: Amount due within one year B AR RS AaRIET
shown under current liabilities R—ERNEIER > I8 (742) =
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FIRIEREBEEIE T 2B 7,027 -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group obtained
a new bank loan amounting to HK$8,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately MOP8,252,000) (2020: nil). The loan carries
interest at variable market rate of Prime Rate less 2.55% per
annum and is repayable in instalments over 10 years. The
proceed was used to finance the acquisition of owned property
with carrying amount of MOP17,398,000 at 31 December 2021
included in the property, plant and equipment (see Note 14),
which is also pledged to the bank to secure the bank loan.

REE_Z_—F+_A=+—HIEFE"
AEFEF—E£%7%48,000,0008 T (18
E11498,252,000/297T) (T2 T HF | )
HHIRITER ZEARREZENERESE
2.55%M Al EmiGHEFFE > BAMOFERN
DHEE -FMEREANA KB AYE-
BEERBENN_E-_—H+_A=+—
HBIERE{E%417,398,000/RFI cHI B B %
(RMisE14) REEE > HMEFEFTIRITIU
HERIBITER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EE_Z

—t A= IR

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. I 7
Number of Share
shares capital
iR & E & 2s
MOP’000
TR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EIEE0.01B T B
Authorised: VERE -
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and RN _ZE_ZFF—H—H-
31 December 2021 —EoEg+_HB=+—HK
2 —F#+"HA=+—H 5,000,000,000 51,500
Issued and fully paid: BRITRERE :
At 1 January 2020 R TETEF—F—H 45,000,000 464
Capitalisation Issue (Note j) BEARMEE1T (Wati) 1,455,000,000 15,008
Issue of shares (Note i) BEITRRAD (B i) 500,000,000 5,158
At 31 December 2020 and A TETEF+A=+—HK
31 December 2021 B —®#+"H=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,630

Notes:

(i) On 22 January 2020, 1,455,000,000 shares of the Company were
issued through capitalisation of HK$14,550,000 (approximately
MOP15,008,000) standing to the credit of the share premium

account of the Company.

(i)  On 14 February 2020, the Company issued 500,000,000 new
shares at HK$0.25 each with gross proceeds of HK$125,000,000
(approximately MOP128,938,000) by initial public offering and then
the Company’s shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange.

The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares.

() MRIEBE-ZE—B_+_-H ' @BBEERQ
B IR (7 i [EER #E AR EB14,550,00078 7t (89
15,008,000/ F37) £TE AR A EET
1,455,000,0008% 7= A T jR 17 o

i) RZEZZTEFE_B+WBE > EXRAEB
BRAMEEETESREEC.25EBTH
500,000,000 # A% 15 > FT1S TR IB42 2B 4
125,000,000 7T (49128,938,000582 F97T) K
HBANBWIRRD BT £ o

MR BRERNDEZEREFHAL
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25.

26.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Eligible employees of the Group are covered by a government-
mandated defined contribution plan managed by the Macau
Government, namely Social Security Fund Contribution,
pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement benefit would be
determined and paid to the Macau Government. Contributions
are generally made by both employees and employers by paying
a fixed amount on a monthly basis to the Social Security Fund
Contribution. The Group funds the entire contribution and has no
further commitments beyond its monthly contributions.

The Group participates in the MPF Schemes under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs for each employee
to the MPF Schemes, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 for the MPF Schemes, which contribution
is matched by employees.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the schemes
prior to their interests in the Group’s contributions becoming
fully vested and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group in future years.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into
the following related party transactions:

()  During the current reporting period, the Group has made
purchases of materials from Shun Tat amounting to
MOP115,000 (2020: nil).

(i) Compensation of key management personnel represents
the remuneration of the directors of the Company during
both years, which is disclosed in Note 10.

25.

26.
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27.

28.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. EXREMEE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be AEEEEAESA ) LR RASE B
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return RS AREBECEFEER 2B
to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity TEAREEREARR BEEIRL KE
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from B EE RS SRR MR & o
prior year.
The capital structure of the Group is equity, comprising share AEBNEAEEAERD (BEREKRH
capital and reserves. &) o
The directors of the Company review the capital structure AN EERFEREERTEREE A
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the ZIEBMNN—E D> KRB EBERBEAN
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated AEAZBERNERANRAR - RIERAABE
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the ENHERR T~EEBEBEZVREKRE
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall TR REFFEEEREEARZRE
capital structure through the payment of dividends and issue of
new shares and debts.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. R TR
Categories of financial instruments ERITHESHE
2021 2020
T —fF 2R
MOP’000 MOP'000
FRMT TBMT
Financial assets TREE
Amortised cost BEEH R A 123,245 176,285
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Amortised cost B R AR 34,093 25,344
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,130 838

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables, amount due from a
related company, pledged bank deposits, time deposit, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, amount due to
a director of the Company, lease liabilities and bank borrowing.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

ERLE R EEEERBR

FEENTIEZSRTABDERWEZRN
B  HMEWRIE B —ERAE AT
B BIRFIRITER ERER RITER
RBE BNEZRRAHEMEBARIE B
NERB—HEEFHE HEERKIRTE
MeoZFEMTANFFEERERANER
BE-HZETERMI EARMNERRIFEFE
ZERBIBREN T -AEEEERE
BREREZS AR URERKRERIO AT
BE
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
(representing pledged bank deposits) denominated in currencies
other than the respective group entities’ functional currencies
at the end of the reporting period are MOP1,493,000 (2020:

MOP19,434,000).

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency exposure. However,
management monitors the related foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant currency exposure

should the need arise.

As the exchange rate of HK$/MOP is relatively stable, the Group
does not expect any significant foreign currency exposure arising
from the fluctuation of the HK$/MOP exchange rates. As a
result, management of the Group considers that the sensitivity of
the Group’s exposure towards the change in foreign exchange

rates between HK$/MOP is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
variable-rate bank borrowing. The Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate time deposit
and lease liabilities. The Group currently does not enter into any

hedging instrument for cash flow interest rate risk.

Management of the Group considers that the overall interest rate

risk is not significant and no sensitivity analysis is presented.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. M T H @
Financial risk management objectives and policies EHEAMREEREREER @
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE R MR ET

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising frorm contracts with
customers

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated its
finance team to develop and maintain the Group’s credit risk
grading to categorised exposures according to their degree
of risk of default. The finance team uses publicly available
financial information, whenever available, and/or the Group’s
own historical repayment records to rate its major customers
and debtors. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings
of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded spreads amongst
counterparties.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2021 on contract assets and trade receivables from
the Group’s top five customers and the largest customers
amounting to MOP93,121,000 and MOP41,601,000 (2020:
MOP97,498,000 and MOP56,334,000), and accounted for
approximately 85% and 81% (2020: 80% and 47%) of the
Group’s total trade receivables and contract assets.

EERRESFHERGHNETEREE
B HEENRER - RERSHR ~5E
FFEHRSEERREEREAERRA S
REBTEEMEEMHEE  ARAERTD
REERGEMHBRRARMAIINEBEDHE
BHNEMEEREE-

KB ZIRARE R SHELNSHEE

PEARERBREERR AEEEZIKE
B/ NEBIE REFEEER R SRR
BENRRRZENERETOE  ME/I\E
ERAMBASNMBHER WA) kA&
EEESBAEENTREAEZERTRANE
BANETFH R - AERAFEERABRRER
SHFNEERERREEARZNEBE
R FEETOH-

R_E_—&E+_FB=+—H A&£EHE
ERE A ERMAATERLARBARR
Eﬁm,\ﬁéﬁ&ﬁéu&%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%% 121,000
BP9 55 5241,601,000/8F3 5 (ZE -4 ©
97 498,00038 P9 7T £ 56,334,000 P9 75) B
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(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuea)
Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Trade receivables and contract
assets are assessed individually for impairment assessment
based on the Group’s internal credit rating, historical credit
loss experience, aging analysis, repayment history and/or past
due status of respective trade receivables and contract assets,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate. In this regard,
the directors of the Company considered that the credit risk for
trade receivables and contract assets is significantly reduced at
the end of the reporting period.

Deposits, other receivables, amount due from a related
company, pledged bank deposits, time deposit and bank
balances

At 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount of rental
deposits amounted to MOP313,000 (2020: MOP390,000),
and management of the Group makes periodic individual
assessments on the recoverability of deposits based on
landlords’ credit quality. Management of the Group believes
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balances of deposits. The directors of the Company
considered that ECL for rental deposits is insignificant at the end
of the reporting period.

Management of the Group makes individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables and amount due from
a related company based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. Management of the Group believes
that there is no material credit risk inherent in these outstanding
balances. The directors of the Company considered that ECL
for these outstanding balances is insignificant at the end of the
reporting period.

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. M T H @
Financial risk management objectives and policies EHEAMREEREREER @
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Deposits, other receivables, amount due from a related
company, pledged bank deposits, time deposit and bank
balances (Continued)

The Group placed deposits only with those sizeable and
reputable banks. Over 97% (2020: 99%) of the Group’s bank
deposits are deposited to state-owned corporations with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for time deposits, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances by reference to published
information relating to the probability of default and considered
the ECL to be insignificant and no loss allowance was
recognised.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

28. TR @

TREREEERKRER @

EER M RBE G @)

BT BMEIIE ~ [EIN— R 1\ 5]
15 ~ B PFIRIT 77K ~ B TFAL e 2R 1T A e
)

FEEERREFHNREAREER
YFRYIRTT - AEEBBEIT% (T _FF :
99%) BYERTT 7R 17 TS B R 15 AR ST AR 1 48
BERBERARNEELEX AEEZER
2EARENRINETHENHERF
PO RRIRITERRIRTERRET1I2EARE
HEEBE L IBSEMEEEEST
BER WAEETEEDEERERF-

A& B A 215 & R kR E R (4 B U T4
A

Trade receivables/

Category Description contract assets Other financial assets
125 it BREZRR SHNEE HtiemEe
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
past-due amounts - not credit-impaired
RE R HFERMEQNRRRE BLREMaRRE LHRBREESE 12BREHEERE
- TENRESHE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle in full  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
- not credit-impaired
FINGRLE BHEARERIBERER BBRQRENE LHRBEESE 12EREHEERE
—IERERESRE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
recognition through information developed internally or external - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
resources
2= ABRIMBERREREERBREERREMERILRE 2BRNRESEHSE FHRBEEEE
il —LERERESRE —IREREERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired - credit-impaired
B BEBLREEDLREEAAE SHRBEESE 2HRMEEERE

—hREEHE

—-HREEHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

28. TR @

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s
financial assets and contract assets which are subject to ECL

STREAMESEEEZEREER @)

E8 R R E G @
TREVARETRAEEBEIGIESE
BTREERGNEENEERR

assessment:
Gross carrying amount
External credit ~ Internal credit 12m ECL or as at 31 December
Notes rating rating lifetime ECL Rt-AZ+-RRKEE
SMEbES REEE 128 B EHEEHRR 2021 2020
MizE Tk RE 2ERBEEHEE ZZT-F CZ2°%f
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR THEMT
Financial assets at amortised cost
RAHERAIRNERNEE
Trade receivables 15 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL 35,794 21,156
- not credit-impaired
W B ZEEN TER RER 2HRREERE
—UEHREEHE
Watch List Lifetime ECL 3,415 6,450
- not credit-impaired
JIAERRE LERBEERR
- ELREERHE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL 15,408 17,163
- not credit-impaired
R LHRBEERR
~IRYREERE
Loss Lifetime ECL 31 -
- credit-impaired
B 2HRREERE
- BEREEHE
54,648 44,769
Deposit for a construction contract 15 N/A Low risk 12m ECL
BEANEE TER R 12ERBHEERE - 535
Deposits and other receivables 15 N/A Low risk 12m ECL
HEREMRYEE TER RER 12ERBBEERE 1,648 990
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. M T A ®w
Financial risk management objectives and policies ERASEEBEERBE @
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R KREFE @
Gross carrying amount
External credit  Internal credit 12m ECL or as at 31 December
Notes rating rating lifetime ECL R+ZRA=+-BRKERE
SEEE REEE 128 R BREESES 2021 2020
iz B R 2HBHEERE ET-& CTIZ°ZfF

MOP'000  MOP'000
TR TEfn

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

REERAIIRNEREE B
Amount due from a related company 18 N/A Low risk 12m ECL - 4
el —RREARTIE TER AR 12ERBHEEER
Pledged bank deposits 19 Al N/A 12m ECL 1,493 19,434
BIEAETER TER 12EARHEEES
Time deposit 19 Al N/A 12m ECL 28,194 6,474
EBEA TER 12ERRHEEES
Bank balances 19 Al N/A 12m ECL 40,243 105,394
RITARER TER 12ERRHEEES
69,930 131,302
Other item
HitIER
Contract assets 17 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL 71,004 10,241
- not credit-impaired
BHEE TEH Bk LHRBEERR
—iEEREEHE
Watch list Lifetime ECL 118 24,289

- not credit-impaired

JINERLE LHBREERE
—IRHREEAE

Doubtful Lifetime ECL 46,127 46,438
- not credit-impaired

iR LHBBEEHE
~IREREERE

Loss Lifetime ECL 1,468 -
- credit-impaired

B LHRREERE
- BERE&RAE

118,717 80,968
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. R T H @
Financial risk management objectives and policies EHEAMREEREREER @
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R KRERE @
The following table shows movements in lifetime ECL that has TRINTRBEBIEH EZEDNEWE Z iR
been recognised for trade receivables and contract assets under MRENEEEHRMEEHEEES-

the simplified approach.

BNEE W E RN
Contract assets Trade receivables

2 HATEH 2 HITEH 2 HATRH

FERE 2HRENGESR FEEE FEEE

(EEHR R EHR (it 8 137 (3R
EEHE) EERE) EERE) EERE) CE

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit- (not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) Total

TR TR TR TR TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

At 1 January 2020 N S S 136 - 269 216 621
Impairment losses reversed ~ BERIBESE = o (255) (216) (471)
Impairment loss recognised MELSRHEEY

for new financial assets ERDHESE

originated 3,618 - 1,301 - 4919
At 31 December 2020 “Z°%F

+_ﬁ =+-H 3,754 - 1,315 - 5,069

Impairment losses reversed E}%EH%EE (1,457) - (1,131) - (2,588)
Changes due to financial RZEZ—F—A—H

instruments recognised BRzEEMTAM

asat 1 January 2021 ELf788

— Transfer to credit-impaired -BAFERE (56) 56 (1) 1 -

— Impairment losses —ERRRESE

recognised 5,134 1,412 415 30 6,991

Impairment losses recognised for ~ HELSREEZ

new financial assets originated EBRRRESE 926 - 2,384 - 3,310
At 31 December 2021 RIZ2Z-F

+ZA=+—-H 8,301 1,468 2,982 31 12,782
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the estimated loss rates for trade
receivables and contract assets ranged from 0.16% to 18%
(2020: 0.16% to 6%). The increase in loss rates reflects a higher
risk of credit default arising from the greater uncertainty triggered
by the prolonged Covid-19 pandemic. During the current year,
following the suspension of a project in Macau, the increase
in ECL is mainly caused by significant increase in credit risk of
two customers, of which the related gross carrying amounts of
these two customers’ trade receivables and contract assets of
MOP11,335,000 and MOP30,637,000 (2020: MOP17,163,000
and MOP46,438,000) are considered as doubtful balances. ECL
of an aggregate amount of MOP7,555,000 out of the total ECL
provision of MOP12,782,000 (2020: MOP3,816,000 out of the
total ECL provision of MOP5,069,000) has been provided for
these balances.

The loss rates are determined based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtor, and are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables, which include the forecast of GDP in
Macau. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress
and retention money and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types
of contracts. Management has therefore concluded that the
expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

28. TR @

ERAMEEEEREE @

EE R R BETEE @
ACE - —F+_HA=+—H EKES
RARENEENGHFTERIRENF0.16%
F18% (CE-FF : 0.16%E6%) Bk X
L F R BRCovid- 19K T RFRBIIER 51 3 89
BEATHEMEREEENRARMA R
EREE RNEERMEBEER BHEES
BENTEZEHARMETEZEERB A
BN EFZEMmaE R 2R IRE iR
AR EHNEEZHA4EIREE11,335,000
S8 P9 7T 5% 30,637,00038FI T (Z & — T4 ¢
17,163,0003% 9 75 5 46,438,00038 F9 7t)
WRARIRGRR -TBAEEHEEE B
12,782,000)2 Fc A TBRAE EE5 1840 %8
7,555,000 5 (CE_ZF | FEHREES
8 5 55 48 85,069,00072 P9 7t 2 #93,816,000
BFIIT) E R E AR IR S o

BREDENRBEFARBFHRNBERR
FIRENRETE  WHHETRABURMEA
AR ERRBEBWIERE NN RHEE
HENERRATEIEE R SEERPIARM
EERENTEN - aNEEYRARTIER
TREKkFEE BEARRESONEKRE
ZERMBEARBERNARS = AL §
BERN BREZRUNBARBLAXAS
NEEBRRRGEMES-

MENE £ R

HEERDETERE AEEBERKRER
EEERATENRERRESEYKFE
UERAEBNEBREES TAKRE
MENBHNTE -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates
for non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.

28. TR @

TREREEERKRER @

MENE £ ER

TREVNAEBREBEETFRBEBE
TREENGRTSARIE - &ZRIHIREAR
EEVEAXNNRFEEANEREERN
REFEFEERERR -FITESREERNE
HAERVENERBHR ZXREBENER
KrEREME -

Weighted  On demand Total
average  or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
e BER RUERRE

S =LilkS DIME 1526 2F56 SEYE TEE IREfE
% MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
% FRMT FRMT FRMT FiRMT FRMT FRMT

At 31 December 2021 RZZE-—-f+-A=+—-A
Trade and other payables FE(T & ZER R EL At (T 2008 - 25,967 - - - 25,967 25,967
Lease liabilities HEaR 5 9 240 - - 1,181 1,130

Amount due to a director ENARE—REERE

of the Company - 357 - - - 357 357
Bank borrowing IBITMER 245 942 943 2,807 4,085 8,797 7,769
28,207 1,183 2,827 4,085 36,302 35,223

At 31 December 2020 R ZE_EE+_A=1—H
Trade and other payables FE(T & ZER TR EL At (T 208 - 25,321 = = = 25,321 25,321
Lease liabilties HEAE 5 766 9% - - 862 838

Amount due to a director EAAAE—LEERE

of the Company - 23 - - - 23 23
26,110 96 = = 26,206 26,182

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values at the end of the reporting period.

THIANATEFE
TMEERTBREENQAFEDLREER
RFEEREDMIRBECEEETE

RABEFRA NG M HREPREH
ARHNEMEERERNRAEAR
R|BEFARNAFERE
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29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 29. EX BB TN AEYHEE

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Amount

due to
Lease a director Bank Accrued
liabilities of the Company borrowing issue costs

FEft AR
—4%EE FEst
HE&RE A SRITER BT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR FRMT FRMT
At 1 January 2020 RZ2ZTF—H—H 1,326 367 - 1,279
Financing cash flow ! éfﬁém; (1,418 (344) = (20,045)
Interest expenses FERZ % = = =

Early termination of HESHRERR L

lease contract (267) = - _
New leases entered ST RRA 1,101 - - -
Issue costs accrued FEEH 1T A - - = 18,766
At 31 December 2020 KZEZZF+-A=+—H 838 23 - -
Financing cash flow i Sfﬁﬁu@ (1,320) 334 7,624 -
Interest expenses FERX 106 - 145 -
New leases entered ST AR 1,506 - - -
At 31 December 2021 K-B_—%+_H=+—H 1,130 357 7,769 -

30. PERFORMANCE BONDS 30. EAYREK

31

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has outstanding
performance bonds in respect of construction contracts through
a bank amounting to MOP1,493,000 (2020: MOP19,434,000).
The bonds are secured by pledged bank deposits as disclosed
in Note 19.

. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Right-of-use assets for buildings with a total capital value of
MOP1,506,000 (2020: MOP1,101,000) and the same amount
of lease liabilities were recognised during the year ended 31
December 2021. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor.

Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

31.

RN_E - —F+_A=+—H &cEEB
BIRTHMERENEEAREEBBNRER
1,493,000:2F9 7t (ZZE T4 : 19,434,000
WP TT) c X EFRE R 19T ENE R
FHIRTTEREER

FRERH

REBEE_Z_—S+_A=+—HILEE"

A B A {E A1,506,0008F T (CEZE
£ 11,101,0008F97T) WIS F(EAEEE K&
HREEBENHAEaE FERAMRFHEES
EIEFERIN AERS L EE S TR

St

DEO

HEEEFSRFEENRERR
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32.

33.

PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

32WEQEWﬁE

EIZIK’/_\\EW);/\EE’Jﬁ BAE

Issued and
Place of Place of fully paid Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation operation share capital of the Group Principal Principal activities
B&1T HER
il=YNGET st 2 SEME KB FEfL A HE TEER
2021 2020
% CTECEE

Directly held:

ERRE

SEM Investments Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

SEM Investments Limited RBRIHEE &8 1%E7T 100% 100% REER

Indirectly held:

iEESEE

SEM Development Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

SEM Development Limited HERUEE BE 1%7T 100% 100% REER

SEM Resources Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of administrative
support for the Group and
provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering
services

SEM Resources Limited 54 BB 187 100% 100%  AXERRETHZFLR
HE N R T2

Ready System Engineering Limited ~ Macau Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering
services

SEZRIRERAT HP HP 25,0002 7T 100% 100%  REBNREHIERS

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 22 January 2020, the Company conditionally adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) as incentive
or reward for contributions that the eligible participants have
made or may make to the Group. Pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme, the Company may grant options to any employee,
advisor, consultant, service provider, agent, client, partner or
joint-venture partner of the Company or its subsidiary (including
any director or any director of the Group’s subsidiaries) who is
in full-time or part-time employment with or otherwise engaged
by the Company or any subsidiary at the time when an option
is granted to such person under the Share Option Scheme
or any person who, in the absolute discretion of the board,
has contributed or may contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for the shares thereby linking their
interest with that of the Group.

F 4 3R 25 HA R I I /A B 3 4 B AT AE 0 TS
B

33. [ERRESTE

TR F-A T H ARBEKN
POk B IR St B (TRERRIESTE)) - LUREY
AREAERSEEHAERFENNA
FEEHBER - IRIBIERES R XA A
AEABHEMNBRRNERES FEHA
BB RBHER AE-ZER-GBA
HEELXSBA (BEEAESFHEAER
MBARNERES RUBRE MEH
ATRERBERESEBETERERAS
ERARBEEXNELLRFDHEFMEL
BIUEMASRNER InEFEE2ENIBER
HEAEREHE A EMEERMBERNAL
(TEEXR2HEE)) REBREMEDER
7 BAERFRE —HAme
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continueq)

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the board
may, in their absolute discretion make offer to the Eligible
Participants. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption, after which period
no further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in force to the extent necessary to
give effect to the exercise of any options granted or exercised
prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance with
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme
(together with options which may be granted under any other
share option schemes) shall not exceed such number of shares
as equals to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at
the date of Listing.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each grantee (including both
exercised or outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined by the board, but in any event will
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the particular option,
which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as shown in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of the particular option; and (i) the
nominal value of a share on the offer date of the particular
option.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were
no share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme
nor were any share options granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

33. R ETE @

RRNEBRES B ER EF LD
BFEROGERSRERHEBRE - BkE
TR B R B HREERN0FEN T %R
B~ BR B ARERE  ERLTTEESTA
B H 830 E 17 62 B9 (E 7 8 IR 1 o 8 AR A 51
IR FEREE RN EL E B L E il
BE -

1R 45 B8 IR 51 B FO (T I BF {2 AT BE 3% Y RO BB
BeHE CE [B) R 45 1 fr] H fth B AR 51 2 mJ pE 1%
HE B E) P RGO ERASE B FE
BAEEN LT HPRAATEZETRA
10%MRIDEE °

RAEMI2EBHER > SEEATEERE
RERETRE TETHORMEH (BEE
TRESERITENBERE FEBBEET
BR1DBI1%

BRESSETRONNIBERHESS
BE BRI ERUTERSE ()
RHAMBREERD WAREXER M
Fre BmERAIIROWHE ;()XZERH
BRERLAPAMAEEXAMIFAER
BRI RAD FHUTHIE ; (i} A
BREERZRMNEE-

BHE_ 2 _—HSkx_ZE_ZF+_H
=+ —HIEFE BRESEIE T ERT
ERERE HIE T NEE A EREERE
BRI 1T R TR o
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 34. ‘A BA IR R R R EE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
T —TEF
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000
Kz TR FEF T

Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB RSB 4 4
Investment in a subsidiary R—RER B AR NRE 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGO 26,322 =
26,327 B

Current assets REBEE
Other receivables HAuhpEUsiia 898 2,281
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENGIE R - 278
Time deposit T HAFER 20,659 =
Bank balances RITARER 8,310 72,506
29,867 75,065
Current liabilities Bt A=Yl

Other payables HpE I8 980 866
Amount due to a subsidiary FE —FE B B8 2 Bl 7B - 13,668
980 14,534
Net current assets RENBEFEE 28,887 60,531
Total assets less current liabilities EEERTHEE 55,214 60,536

Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital RZ 7 24 20,630 20,630
Reserves (EiNiat @) 34,584 39,906

55,214 60,536
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 34. ZASI AR R R L EE @
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note (a):  Movements in reserves of the Company Bizta): NREIEEES)

Share  Accumulated

premium losses Total
B i=E REth5i8 st
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

FRFIT F#FIT FEFIT

At 1 January 2020 RoE-E&—F—0H - (31,382) (31,382)
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREERZALEE

expenses for the year - (13,221) (13,221)
Issue of shares (Note 24) BITRRAD (W15E24) 123,780 - 123,780
Transaction costs attributable to 21T ARID FE(E 3 5 B Zs

issue of new shares (24,263) - (24,263)
Capitalisation Issue (Note 24) BAR1CE1T (Wat24) (15,008) - (15,008)
At 31 December 2020 RIE_ZTF+_"_B=+—H 84,509 (44,603) 39,906
Loss and total comprehensive FHRBEREAERSZEE

expenses for the year - (5,322) (5,322)
At 31 December 2021 KRB _—4%#+"B=+—H 84,509 (49,925) 34,584
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RIS

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities and
equity of the Group for the last five financial years set out below.

FEBRBEAEYBREFENCTEXEURE
EE -BEREGNBEHRN TR

RESULTS e
Year ended 31 December
BE+_B=+—HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—F—&F “Z°2F Z-HAF Z-N\F B2tF
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FEMT TR FBMTT FEMPT FEMT
Revenue s 182,176 70,239 203,087 185,229 207,913
(Loss) profit before taxation BriAT (5518) ‘a7 (4,957) (19,409) 27,287 48,413 44,909
Taxation RIE (14) (806) (7,020) (6,927) (6,010)
(Loss) profit for the year FR (518) BH (4,97) (20,215) 20,267 41,486 38,899
Attrioutable to: BUF AL HEG
Owners of the Company EUN=IEZEPN (4,971) (20,215) 20,267 41,486 38,399
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
As at 31 December
B+ZB=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—ET—&F "2 %E “FTHFE “F-N\E _T—tF
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FEMT FEM FBMT FREMT TR
Total assets BEEE 273,411 272,110 207,333 174,099 136,234
Total liabilities BEeE (42,515) (36,243) (55,926) (42,959) (32,655)
Total equity TEmiEEE 230,896 235,867 151,407 131,140 103,579
Attributable to: BUF A LFELS
Owners of the Company UNGIEZZ=DN 230,896 235,867 151,407 131,140 103,579

The summary of the combined results of the Group for the two years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2018; and the combined assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2018 have been
extracted from the Prospectus. Such Summary is presented on the
basis as set out in the Prospectus.

KEEBHE_T—tTtER_ZE—-—NE+_A
—t+t—HIEREFENEGHEEAEIEERBRZ
E—t+ERZE-—NFE+ZBA=+—B0EH
EEMGEBERREBRER -ZMERBR
ERFHEERT o
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